
From: Graves, Matt
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM)
Subject: Follow-up and question
Date: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:50:27 PM

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
Thanks again for meeting with me last Friday.  I wanted to follow up on a question we discussed
about Kennametal’s torch that we will be looking to add to their permit as a natural gas combustion
unit.  As you may recall, it is currently in use as a propane combustion unit not listed on the current
permit/registration but will be converted later this year pending the permit/registration
amendment.  I’m looking for confirmation that we could proceed with the amendment process
identifying it as a natural gas unit (anticipated) rather than submitting an amendment to have it
added as a current propane unit now, only to then file another amendment to change it to a natural
gas fired unit in two months.  I think you were discussing internally and I was just looking to see if
there has been a determination on this.  As a reminder, the emissions calculations are showing this
proposed NG configuration as 0.18 tpy NOX for this unit.
 
Also, we had discussed their plan to reroute a dust collection system from an indoor localized
receptacle (drum/bin) to inclusion into their existing baghouse (DC5) which is already part of the
permit/registration servicing the Iron/Nickel classifying operation.  I believe you mentioned that this
may not necessarily require an amendment, but in the event that it does, we may be needing Form
CE-02 (Baghouse/Fabric Filter).  Question:  do we need the amendment for this and if so, would we
actually need the Form CE-02 since the baghouse (DC5) is already covered under the current
permit/registration?
 
Just looking for clarification as I move through preparing the amendment.
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

Click here to connect with me on LinkedIn

AECOM
707 Grant Street
5th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15219, United States
T +412-395-8888
aecom.com ​
Delivering a better world
LinkedIn | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram
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From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM)
To: Graves, Matt
Subject: RE: Follow-up and question
Date: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:44:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello,
 
Thank you for following up:
 

1. Yes, you may proceed with the amendment process identifying it as a natural gas unit.
 

2. You would not need the form CE-02 since the baghouse is already in the permit. I would say
include the transitioning of control devices in the amendment.

 
 

Indiana Department of 
Environmental Management
 

Sarah Germann
Environmental Manager
• (317) 234-6555  •  srgerman@idem.IN.gov  

Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment

 
 

From: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:50 PM
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>
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

mailto:SRGerman@idem.IN.gov
mailto:Matt.Graves1@aecom.com
mailto:srgerman@idem.IN.gov






 
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
Cc: Chevalier, Laura
Subject: RE: Follow-up and question
Date: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:46:59 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Great!!  Thanks for the prompt reply.
 
Matt
 
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:45 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>
Subject: RE: Follow-up and question
 
Hello, Thank you for following up: Yes, you may proceed with the amendment process identifying it as a natural gas unit. You would not need the form CE-02 since the baghouse is already in the permit. I would say include the transitioning of

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
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 11:17:31 AM
Attachments: image001.png

00 Kennametal Stellite-Cover Letter - AA 11-02 (FINAL).docx
01 Checklist - 51607 10-30 (FINAL).doc
02 Kennametal Stellite_Air Permit Application Cover Sheet 11-02 (FINAL).doc
03 GSD-01 General Source Data_Kennametal Stellite 11-02 (FINAL).doc
04 46685per (Amendments - 2023 Redline) 11-02.docx
05 46685calcs REV 11-02 (FINAL).xlsx

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
As we discussed earlier, I know this is not the official submittal nor the process for it, but if you could
give the attached documents a quick look through to make sure I didn’t miss anything, I would
certainly appreciate it.  If you have any comments or suggestions, I’ll address those promptly prior to
our official submittal.
 
Thanks,
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
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November 2, 2023





Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Permit Administration and Support Section, 

Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204



RE: 	Administrative Amendment Application

	Kennametal Stellite LP

	Source ID 039-00078

	Goshen, Elkhart County



Dear Ms. Germann,



Kennametal Stellite LP (Kennametal) is submitting this letter along with the required forms and documentation for an Administrative Amendment to Registration/Permit Number 039-46685-00078.  

The requested Administrative Amendment is for the inclusion of one (1) natural gas fired process heating torch and six (6) natural gas fired process heating burners, along with the rerouting of a dust collection system from a discharge within the building, to a discharge to existing baghouse DC5.



Kennametal Stellite LP is requesting the following revisions to accurately reflect operations at the facility:



Section A – Source Summary:  

A.2 Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary

Add:  One (1) Rod/Wire casting process heating torch - natural gas combustion source.

Add:  Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners fired by natural gas.

Add:  One (1) dust collector to the Linishing line exhausting to Baghouse DC5.

These updates can be completed under the Administrative Amendment since the changes result in a de minimis increase in Potential to Emit (PTE) levels.  These updates will not trigger any new requirements nor violate the terms of the existing registration.

A red-lined copy of the current registration, reflecting the requested updates, has been included with this submittal.  If you should have any questions regarding this submittal, please feel free to contact me at Nicole.Williams@kennametal.com, or at (256) 571-6823.



Sincerely,







Nicole Williams

Plant Manager



Enclosures:

Form 50639 – Air Application Cover Sheet

Form 51607 – OAQ Air Permit Application – Forms Checklist

Form 50640 – Basic Source Level Information (GSD-01)

Registration No. R039-14366-00078, (redlined) 

Emissions Calculations Update – Kennametal Stellite


Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Air Permit Application


Office of Air Quality

Forms Checklist


State Form 51607 (R5 / 1‑10)
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		OAQ AIR PERMIT APPLICATION – FORMS CHECKLIST


State Form 51607 (R5 / 1‑10)


INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT




		IDEM – Office of Air Quality – Permits Branch

100 N. Senate Avenue, MC 61-53 Room 1003


Indianapolis, IN 46204-2251


Telephone: (317) 233-0178 or


Toll Free: 1-800-451-6027 x30178 (within Indiana)


Facsimile Number: (317) 232-6749


www.IN.gov/idem  



		

		

		



		

		

		



		NOTES:




		· The purpose of this checklist is to help the applicant and IDEM, OAQ ensure that the air permit application packet is administratively complete.  This checklist is a required form.


· Check the appropriate box indicating whether each application form is applicable for the current permit application.  The source must submit only those forms pertinent to the current permit application.


· Place this checklist between the cover sheet and all subsequent forms and attachments that encompass your air permit application packet.





		Part A: General Source Data



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		COVER

		Application Cover Sheet

		50639

		Include for every application, modification, and renewal, including source specific operating agreements (SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CHECKLIST

		Forms Checklist

		51607

		Include for every application, modification, and renewal, including SSOA.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑01

		Basic Source Level Information

		50640

		Include for every application, modification, and renewal, including SSOA.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑02

		Plant Layout Diagram

		51605

		Include for every new source application, and modification.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑03

		Process Flow Diagram

		51599

		Include one for every process covered by the application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑04

		Stack / Vent Information

		51606

		Include for every new source application, and modification.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑05

		Emissions Unit Information

		51610

		Include for every process covered by the application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑06

		Particulate Emissions Summary

		51612

		Include if the process has particulate emissions (PM).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑07

		Criteria Pollutant Emissions Summary

		51602

		Include if the process has criteria pollutant emissions.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑08

		HAP Emissions Summary

		51604

		Include if the process has hazardous air pollutant emissions (HAP).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑09

		Summary of Additional Information

		51611

		Include if the additional information is included.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑10

		Insignificant Activities

		51596

		Include if there are unpermitted insignificant activities.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑11

		Alternative Operating Scenario

		51601

		Include if an AOS is requested.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑12

		Affidavit of Nonapplicability

		51600

		Include if the standard notification requirements do not apply.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑13

		Affidavit of Applicability

		51603

		Include if the standard notification requirements apply.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑14

		Owners and Occupants Notified

		51609

		Include if the standard notification requirements apply.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		GSD‑15

		Government Officials Notified

		51608

		Include if the standard notification requirements apply.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		RENEWAL

		Renewal Checklist

		51755

		Include with every operating permit renewal packet.





		Part B: Process Information



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		AEF‑01

		Alternate Emission Factor Request

		51860

		Submit if you are requesting to use an emission factor other than AP‑42.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑01

		Miscellaneous Processes

		52534

		Include one form for each process for which there is not a specific PI form.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02A

		Combustion Unit Summary

		52535

		Include one form to summarize all combustion units (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02B

		Combustion: Boilers, Process Heaters, & Furnaces

		52536

		Include one form for each boiler, process heater, or furnace (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02C

		Combustion: Turbines & Internal Combustion Engines

		52537

		Include one form for each turbine or internal combustion engine (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02D

		Combustion: Incinerators & Combustors

		52538

		Include one form for each incinerator or combustor (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02E

		Combustion: Kilns

		52539

		Include one form for each kiln (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02F

		Combustion: Fuel Use

		52540

		Include one form for each combustion unit (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02G

		Combustion: Emission Factors

		52541

		Include one form for each combustion unit (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑02H

		Combustion: Federal Rule Applicability

		52542

		Include one form for each combustion unit (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑03

		Storage and Handling of Bulk Material

		52543

		Include if the process involves the storage and handling of bulk materials.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑04

		Asphalt Plants

		52544

		Include for each asphalt plant process (unless general permit).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑05

		Brick / Clay Products

		52545

		Include for each brick and/or clay products process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑06

		Electroplating Operations

		52546

		Include for each electroplating process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑07

		Welding Operations

		52547

		Include for each welding process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑08

		Concrete Batchers

		52548

		Include for each concrete batcher (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑09

		Degreasing

		52549

		Include for each degreasing process (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑10

		Dry Cleaners

		52550

		Include for each dry cleaning process 



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑11

		Foundry Operations

		52551

		Include for each foundry process



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑12

		Grain Elevators

		52552

		Include for each grain elevator (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑13

		Lime Manufacturing

		52553

		Include for each lime manufacturing process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑14

		Liquid Organic Compound Storage

		52554 (doc)

		Include if the process involves the storage of liquid organic compounds.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑14ALT

		Alternate version of Liquid Organic Compound Storage

		52555 (xls)

		Include if the process involves the storage of liquid organic compounds and there are several storage vessels.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑15

		Portland Cement Manufacturing

		52556

		Include for each Portland cement manufacturing process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑16

		Reinforced Plastics & Composites

		52557

		Include for each reinforced plastics and composites process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑17

		Blasting Operations

		52558

		Include for each blasting process (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑18

		Mineral Processing

		52559

		Include if the process involves mineral processing (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑19

		Surface Coating & Printing Operations

		52560

		Include for each surface coating or printing process (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑20

		Woodworking / Plastic Machining

		52561

		Include for each woodworking or plastic machining process (unless SSOA).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑21

		Site Remediation

		52570

		Include for each soil remediation process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PI‑22

		Ethanol Plants (Under Development)

		None

		Include for each ethanol plant.





		Part C: Control Equipment



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑01

		Control Equipment Summary

		51904

		Include if add‑on control equipment will be used for the process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑02

		Particulates – Baghouse / Fabric Filter

		51953

		Include for each baghouse or fabric filter.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑03

		Particulates – Cyclone

		52620

		Include for each cyclone.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑04

		Particulates – Electrostatic Precipitator

		52621

		Include for each electrostatic precipitator.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑05

		Particulates – Wet Collector / Scrubber / Absorber

		52622

		Include for each wet collector, scrubber, or absorber.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑06

		Organics – Flare / Oxidizer / Incinerator

		52623

		Include for each flare, oxidizer, or incinerator.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑07

		Organics – Adsorbers

		52624

		Include for each adsorber.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑08

		Organics – Condenser

		52625

		Include for each condenser.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑09

		Reduction Technology

		52626

		Include for each control device using reduction technology (e.g., SCR, SNCR).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CE‑10

		Miscellaneous Control Equipment

		52436

		Include one form for equipment for which there is not a specific CE form.





		Part D: Compliance Determination for Part 70 Sources



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CD‑01

		Emissions Unit Compliance Status

		51861

		Include for every Title V application, including modifications.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CD‑02

		Compliance Plan by Applicable Requirement

		51862

		Include for every Title V application, including modifications.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CD‑03

		Compliance Plan by Emissions Unit

		51863

		Include for every Title V application, including modifications.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		CD‑04

		Compliance Schedule and Certification

		51864

		Include for every Title V application, including modifications and renewal.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		FED‑03

		Compliance Assurance Monitoring

		53377

		Include for every Title V application, including modifications.





		Part E: Best Available Control Technology



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		BACT‑01

		Analysis of Best Available Control Technology

		None

		Include for every BACT application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		BACT‑01a

		Background Search: Existing BACT Determinations

		None

		Include for every BACT application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		BACT‑01b

		Cost/Economic Impact Analysis

		None

		Include for every BACT application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		BACT‑02

		Summary of Best Available Control Technology

		None

		Include for every BACT application.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PSD / 
EO‑01

		PSD / Emission Offset Checklist

		None

		Include for every PSD application and every NSR application that requires emission offsets.





		Part F: Emission Credit Registry



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		EC‑01

		Generation of Emission Credits

		51783

		Include if the modification results in emission reductions.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		EC‑02

		Transfer of Emission Credits

		51784

		Submit whenever registered emission credits are transferred.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		EC‑03

		Use of Emission Credits

		51785

		Include if the modification requires the use of emission credits for offsets.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		EC‑04

		Emission Credit Request

		51906

		Submit if you are looking for emission credits for offsets.





		Part G: Plantwide Applicability Limits



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PAL‑01

		Actuals Plantwide Applicability Limit

		52451

		Include if the modification results in emission reductions.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PAL‑02

		Revised Plantwide Applicability Limit

		52452

		Submit whenever registered emission credits are transferred.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PAL‑03

		Plantwide Applicability Limit Renewal

		52453

		Include if the modification requires the use of emission credits for offsets.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		PAL‑04

		Request for Termination of Plantwide Applicability Limit

		52454

		Submit if you are looking for emission credits for offsets.





		Part H: Air Toxics



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		FED‑01

		Summary of Federal Requirements – NSPS & NESHAP

		53512

		Include for each 40 CFR Part 60 NSPS, 40 CFR Part 61 NESHAP, and 40 CFR Part 63 NESHAP applicable to the process.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		FED‑02

		MACT Pre‑Construction Review

		51905

		Include if constructing or modifying a process subject to a Part 63 NESHAP.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		No Form ID

		MACT Initial Notification

		None

		This form is available on the U.S. EPA website.  Completed notifications should be submitted to the IDEM Compliance Branch.





		Part I: Special Permits



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		INTERIM

		Interim Approval

		None

		Submit if you are applying for interim operating approval.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		ASPHALT

		Asphalt General Permit

		None

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying an asphalt plant general permit.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		NOXBTP

		NOX Budget Permit

		None

		Submit if you are a power plant or if you have opted in to the NOX budget trading program.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		ACIDRAIN

		Phase 2 Acid Rain Permit

		None

		Submit if you are applying for, modifying, or renewing a Phase 2 Acid Rain permit.





		Part J: Source Specific Operating Agreements (SSOA)



		Applicable?

		Form ID

		Title of Form

		State Form Number

		When should this form be included in my application packet?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑01

		Summary of Application and Existing Agreements

		53438

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a Source Specific Operating Agreement.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑02

		Industrial / Commercial Surface Coating Operations ‑OR‑ Graphic Arts Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑2.5)

		53439

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for industrial or commercial surface coating operations not subject to 326 IAC 8‑2; or graphic arts operations not subject to 326 IAC 8‑5‑5.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑03

		Surface Coating or Graphic Arts Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑3)

		53440

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for surface coating or graphic arts operations.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑04

		Woodworking Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑4)

		53441

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for woodworking operations.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑05

		Abrasive Cleaning Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑5)

		53442

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for abrasive cleaning operations.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑06

		Grain Elevators (326 IAC 2‑9‑6)

		53443

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for grain elevators.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑07

		Sand And Gravel Plants (326 IAC 2‑9‑7)

		53444

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for sand and gravel plants.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑08

		Crushed Stone Processing Plants (326 IAC 2‑9‑8)

		53445

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for crushed stone processing plants.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑09

		Ready‑Mix Concrete Batch Plants (326 IAC 2‑9‑9)

		53446

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for ready‑mix concrete batch plants.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑10

		Coal Mines And Coal Preparation Plants (326 IAC 2‑9‑10)

		53447

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for coal mines and coal preparation plants.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑11

		Automobile Refinishing Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑11)

		53448

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for automobile refinishing operations.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑12

		Degreasing Operations (326 IAC 2‑9‑12)

		53449

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for degreasing operations.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑13

		External Combustion Sources (326 IAC 2‑9‑13)

		53450

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for external combustion sources.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Y
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 N

		OA‑14

		Internal Combustion Sources (326 IAC 2‑9‑14)

		53451

		Submit if you are applying for or modifying a SSOA for internal combustion sources.
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		AIR PERMIT APPLICATION COVER SHEET


State Form 50639 (R4 / 1-10)


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

		· The purpose of this cover sheet is to obtain the core information needed to process the air permit application.  This cover sheet is required for all air permit applications submitted to IDEM, OAQ.  Place this cover sheet on top of all subsequent forms and attachments that encompass your air permit application packet.


· Submit the completed air permit application packet, including all forms and attachments, to IDEM Air Permits Administration using the address in the upper right hand corner of this page.  


· IDEM will send a bill to collect the filing fee and any other applicable fees.


· Detailed instructions for this form are available on the Air Permit Application Forms website.

		



		

		· 

		FOR OFFICE USE ONLY



		

		

		PERMIT NUMBER:



		

		

		 ____    ______  –  __________  –  ____________



		

		

		



		

		

		DATE APPLICATION WAS RECEIVED: 



		

		

		



		1. Tax ID Number:

		     

		

		





		PART A: Purpose of Application



		Part A identifies the purpose of this air permit application.  For the purposes of this form, the term “source” refers to the plant site as a whole and NOT to individual emissions units.



		2. Source / Company Name:

		Kennametal Stellite LP

		3. Plant ID:

		039 – 00078



		4. Billing Address:

		1201 Eisenhower Dr. N



		City:

		Goshen

		State:

		IN

		ZIP Code:

		46526 –     



		5. Permit Level:

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Exemption
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Registration
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 SSOA
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 MSOP
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 FESOP
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 TVOP
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 PBR



		6. Application Summary: Check all that apply.  Multiple permit numbers may be assigned as needed based on the choices selected below.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Initial Permit
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Renewal of Operating Permit
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Asphalt General Permit


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Review Request
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Revocation of Operating Permit
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Alternate Emission Factor Request


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Interim Approval
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Relocation of Portable Source
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Acid Deposition (Phase II)


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Site Closure
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Emission Reduction Credit Registry



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Transition (between permit levels)
From:      
To:      



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Administrative Amendment:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Company Name Change
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Change of Responsible Official


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Correction to Non-Technical Information
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Notice Only Change


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other (specify):
Addition of NG fired torch (1), Addition of NG oven burners (6), Addition of dust collection component to baghouse DC5.   



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Modification:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 New Emission Unit or Control Device
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Modified Emission Unit or Control Device


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 New Applicable Permit Requirement
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Change to Applicability of a Permit Requirement


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Prevention of Significant Deterioration
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Emission Offset
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 MACT Preconstruction Review


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Minor Source Modification
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Significant Source Modification


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Minor Permit Modification
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Significant Permit Modification


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other (specify):
     



		7. Is this an application for an initial construction and/or operating permit for a "Greenfield" Source?

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No



		8. Is this an application for construction of a new emissions unit at an Existing Source?

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No





		PART B: Pre-Application Meeting



		Part B specifies whether a meeting was held or is being requested to discuss the permit application.



		9. Was a meeting held between the company and IDEM prior to submitting this application to discuss the details of the project?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes:
Date:
     



		10. Would you like to schedule a meeting with IDEM management and your permit writer to discuss the details of this project?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes:
Proposed Date for Meeting:






		PART C: Confidential Business Information



		Part C identifies permit applications that require special care to ensure that confidential business information is kept separate from the public file.


Claims of confidentiality must be made at the time the information is submitted to IDEM, and must follow the requirements set out in the Indiana Administrative Code (IAC).  To ensure that your information remains confidential, refer to the IDEM, OAQ information regarding submittal of confidential business information.  For more information on confidentiality for certain types of business information, please review IDEM’s Nonrule Policy Document Air-031-NPD regarding Emission Data.



		11. Is any of the information contained within this application being claimed as Confidential Business Information?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes





		PART D: Certification Of Truth, Accuracy, and Completeness



		Part D is the official certification that the information contained within the air permit application packet is truthful, accurate, and complete.  Any air permit application packet that we receive without a signed certification will be deemed incomplete and may result in denial of the permit.

For a Part 70 Operating Permit (TVOP) or a Source Specific Operating Agreement (SSOA), a “responsible official” as defined in 326 IAC 2-7-1(34) must certify the air permit application.  For all other applicants, this person is an “authorized Individual” as defined in 326 IAC 2-1.1-1(1).



		 FORMCHECKBOX 

I certify under penalty of law that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information contained in this application are true, accurate, and complete.

Nicole Williams

Plant Manager


Name (typed) 

Title



     


Signature 

Date






Continued on Next Page
Page 1 of 2



_1027413532.doc

[image: image1.png]










Indiana Department of Environmental Management
Air Permit Application


Office of Air Quality
FORM GSD-01


State Form 50640 (R5 / 1-10)
Page 4 of 5



		

[image: image1.png]





		OAQ GENERAL SOURCE DATA APPLICATION


GSD-01: Basic Source Level Information

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

		· The purpose of GSD-01 is to provide essential information about the entire source of air pollutant emissions.  GSD-01 is a required form.


· Detailed instructions for this form are available on the Air Permit Application Forms website.

· All information submitted to IDEM will be made available to the public unless it is submitted under a claim of confidentiality.  Claims of confidentiality must be made at the time the information is submitted to IDEM, and must follow the requirements set out in 326 IAC 17.1-4-1.  Failure to follow these requirements exactly will result in your information becoming a public record, available for public inspection.





		PART A: Source / Company Location Information



		1. Source / Company Name:
Kennametal Stellite LP

		2. Plant ID:
039 – 00078



		3. Location Address:
1201 Eisenhower Dr. N.



		City:
Goshen

		State: IN

		ZIP Code: 46526 –     



		4. County Name:
Elkhart

		5. Township Name:
Elkhart



		6. Geographic Coordinates:



		Latitude:
41* 33' 27" N

		Longitude:
85* 49' 06" W



		7. Universal Transferal Mercadum Coordinates (if known):



		Zone:
     

		Horizontal:
     

		Vertical:
     



		8. Adjacent States: Is the source located within 50 miles of an adjacent state?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Indicate Adjacent State(s):
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Illinois (IL)
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Michigan (MI)
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Ohio (OH)
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Kentucky (KY)



		9. Attainment Area Designation: Is the source located within a non-attainment area for any of the criteria air pollutants?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Indicate Nonattainment Pollutant(s):
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 CO
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Pb
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 NOx
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 O3
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 PM
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 PM10
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 PM2.5
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 SO2



		10. Portable / Stationary: Is this a portable or stationary source?

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Portable
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Stationary





		PART B: Source Summary



		11. Company Internet Address (optional):
     



		12. Company Name History: Has this source operated under any other name(s)?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Provide information regarding past company names in Part I, Company Name History.



		13. Portable Source Location History: Will the location of the portable source be changing in the near future?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Not Applicable
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Complete Part J, Portable Source Location History, and
Part K, Request to Change Location of Portable Source.



		14. Existing Approvals: Have any exemptions, registrations, or permits been issued to this source?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – List these permits and their corresponding emissions units in Part M, Existing Approvals.



		15. Unpermitted Emissions Units: Does this source have any unpermitted emissions units?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – List all unpermitted emissions units in Part N, Unpermitted Emissions Units.



		16. New Source Review: Is this source proposing to construct or modify any emissions units?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – List all proposed new construction in Part O, New or Modified Emissions Units.



		17. Risk Management Plan: Has this source submitted a Risk Management Plan?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Not Required
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes ( Date submitted:      
EPA Facility Identifier:      –      –     





		PART C: Source Contact Information



		IDEM will send the original, signed permit decision to the person identified in this section.  This person MUST be an employee of the permitted source.



		18. Name of Source Contact Person:
Randy Porter



		19. Title (optional):
EHS Manager



		20. Mailing Address:
1201 Eisenhower Drive North



		City:
Goshen

		State: IN

		ZIP Code: 46526 –     



		21. Electronic Mail Address (optional):
randy.porter@kennametal.com



		22. Telephone Number:  (     )       –      

		23. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      



		PART D: Authorized Individual/Responsible Official Information



		IDEM will send a copy of the permit decision to the person indicated in this section, if the Authorized Individual or Responsible Official is different from the Source Contact specified in Part C.



		24. Name of Authorized Individual or Responsible Official:
Nicole Williams



		25. Title:
Plant Manager



		26. Mailing Address:
1201 Eisenhower Drive North



		City:
Goshen

		State: IN

		ZIP Code: 46526 –     



		27. Telephone Number:  (     )       –      

		28. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      



		29. Request to Change the Authorized Individual or Responsible Official: Is the source officially requesting to change the person designated as the Authorized Individual or Responsible Official in the official documents issued by IDEM, OAQ?  The permit may list the title of the Authorized Individual or Responsible Official in lieu of a specific name.



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Change Responsible Official to:
     





		PART E: Owner Information



		30. Company Name of Owner:
Kennametal Stellite LP



		31. Name of Owner Contact Person:
Randy Porter



		32. Mailing Address:
1201 Eisenhower Drive North



		City:
Goshen

		State: IN

		ZIP Code: 46526 –     



		33. Telephone Number:  (     )       –      

		34. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      



		34. Operator: Does the “Owner” company also operate the source to which this application applies?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No   –   Proceed to Part F below.

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes   –   Enter “SAME AS OWNER” on line 35 and proceed to Part G below.





		PART F: Operator Information



		35. Company Name of Operator:
SAME AS OWNER



		36. Name of Operator Contact Person:
     



		37. Mailing Address:
     



		City:
     

		State:   

		ZIP Code:       –     



		38. Telephone Number:  (     )       –      

		39. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      





		PART G: Agent Information



		40. Company Name of Agent:
AECOM



		41. Type of Agent:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Environmental Consultant
 FORMCHECKBOX 
Attorney
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other (specify):      



		42. Name of Agent Contact Person:
Matthew Graves



		43. Mailing Address:
Gulf Tower - 707 Grant Street, 5th Floor



		City:
Pittsburgh

		State: PA

		ZIP Code: 15219 –     



		44. Electronic Mail Address (optional): 
Matt.Graves1@aecom.com



		45. Telephone Number:  ( 412 )  302  –  3591

		46. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      



		47. Request for Follow-up: Does the “Agent” wish to receive a copy of the preliminary findings during the public notice period (if applicable) and a copy of the final determination?

		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes





		PART H: Local Library Information



		48. Date application packet was filed with the local library:
Not Applicable



		49. Name of Library:
     



		50. Name of Librarian (optional):
     



		51. Mailing Address:
     



		City:
     

		State:   

		ZIP Code:       –     



		52. Internet Address (optional):
     



		53. Electronic Mail Address (optional): 
     



		54. Telephone Number:  (     )       –      

		55. Facsimile Number (optional):  (     )       –      





		PART I: Company Name History (if applicable)



		Complete this section only if the source has previously operated under a legal name that is different from the name listed above in Section A.



		56. Legal Name of Company

		57. Dates of Use



		Stellite Coating

		1986
to 3/1/2012



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		     

		     
to      



		58. Company Name Change Request: Is the source officially requesting to change the legal name that will be printed on all official documents issued by IDEM, OAQ?



		 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes – Change Company Name to:
     





		PART J: Portable Source Location History (if applicable)



		Complete this section only if the source is portable and the location has changed since the previous permit was issued.  The current location of the source should be listed in Section A.



		59. Plant ID

		60. Location of the Portable Source

		61. Dates at this Location



		    –      

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





		PART K: Request to Change Location of Portable Source (if applicable)



		Complete this section to request a change of location for a portable source.



		62. Current Location:



		Address:
     



		City:
     

		State:   

		ZIP Code:       –     



		County Name:
     



		63. New Location:



		Address:
     



		City:
     

		State:   

		ZIP Code:       –     



		County Name:
     





		PART L: Source Process Description



		Complete this section to summarize the main processes at the source.



		64. Process Description

		65. Products

		66. SIC Code

		67. NAICS Code



		Alloy Manufacturing

		Metal Alloys

		3369

		331528



		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     





		PART M: Existing Approvals (if applicable)



		Complete this section to summarize the approvals issued to the source since issuance of the main operating permit.



		68. Permit ID

		69. Emissions Unit IDs

		70. Expiration Date



		R039-00078

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     





		PART N: Unpermitted Emissions Units (if applicable)



		Complete this section only if the source has emission units that are not listed in any permit issued by IDEM, OAQ.



		71. Emissions Unit ID

		72. Type of Emissions Unit


		73. Actual Dates



		74. 

		75. 

		Began


Construction

		Completed


Construction

		Began Operation



		     

		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     

		     



		     

		     

		     

		     

		     





		PART O: New or Modified Emissions Units (if applicable)



		Complete this section only if the source is proposing to add new emission units or modify existing emission units.



		76. Emissions Unit ID

		77. NEW

		78. MOD

		79. Type of Emissions Unit


		80. Estimated Dates



		81. 

		82. 

		83. 

		84. 

		Begin


Construction

		Complete


Construction

		Begin Operation
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OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY
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Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1 (Construction of New Sources: Registrations) and 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations), (herein known as the Registrant) is hereby authorized to construct and operate subject to the conditions contained herein, the source described in Section A (Source Summary) of this registration. 



		Registration No. R039-14366-00078

Master Agency Interest ID.: 11625



		Issued by: Original signed by:

Paul Dubenetzky, Chief

Permits Branch

Office of Air Quality

		

Issuance Date:  August 7, 2001







Registration Revision No. 039-15682-00078, issued on February 3, 2003

Notice-Only Change No. 039-23709-00078, issued on October 24, 2006

Notice-Only Change No. 039-25404-00078, issued on October 31, 2007
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Issued by:







Heath Hartley, Section Chief

Permits Branch

Office of Air Quality

		





Issuance Date:






SECTION A	SOURCE SUMMARY



This registration is based on information requested by the Indiana Department of Environmental Management (IDEM), Office of Air Quality (OAQ).  The information describing the source contained in conditions A.1 and A.2 is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.  However, the Registrant should be aware that a physical change or a change in the method of operation that may render this descriptive information obsolete or inaccurate may trigger requirements for the Registrant to obtain additional permits pursuant to 326 IAC 2.



A.1	General Information

The Registrant owns and operates a stationary metal powder manufacturing facility.



Source Address:	1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, Indiana 46526

General Source Phone Number:	(574) 534-2585

SIC Code:	3369 (Nonferrous Foundries, Except Aluminum and Copper)

County Location:	Elkhart County

Source Location Status:	Attainment for all criteria pollutants

Source Status:	Registration



A.2	Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary

This stationary source consists of the following emission units and pollution control devices:



[bookmark: _Hlk139614678](a)	Air Melt Atomization Towers furnaces, each equipped with a product cyclone that is considered integral to the process, and with two (2) fume hoods, located over the furnaces in the atomization towers, constructed in 2006, controlled by baghouse DC2-1, as follows:



		Construction year

		Maximum Capacity (pounds/hour)

		Baghouse ID



		1990

		800

		DC1



		2007

		800

		DC3







(b)	Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas burners with a maximum input of 250,000 BTU/hr each.



(bc) 	One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC4.



(cd) 	One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC5.



(de)	One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for modification, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC7.



(ef)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume hood/Baghouse DC9.



(g)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas heating torch with a maximum input of 325,000 BTU/hr.



(fh)	One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, using a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24 pounds of parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC8. This booth is located in the Research and Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and testing for welding torches. 



(gi)	One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(hj)	Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in 2018, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(k)	One (1) process dedicated dust collector identified as DC12 for dust collection at the linishing equipment line discharging to Baghouse DC5.



(il)	One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with heat input capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and exhausting to Stk1.



Under 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, this unit is considered an affected facility.

Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, this unit is considered an affected new facility.






SECTION B	GENERAL CONDITIONS



B.1	Definitions [326 IAC 2-1.1-1]

Terms in this registration shall have the definition assigned to such terms in the referenced regulation.  In the absence of definitions in the referenced regulation, the applicable definitions found in the statutes or regulations (IC 13-11, 326 IAC 1-2 and 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) shall prevail.



B.2	Effective Date of Registration [IC 13-15-5-3]

Pursuant to IC 13-15-5-3, this registration is effective immediately, unless a petition for stay of effectiveness is filed and granted according to IC 13-15-6-3, and may be revoked or modified in accordance with the provisions of IC 13-15-7-1.



B.3	Registration Revocation [326 IAC 2-1.1-9]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-1.1-9 (Revocation), this registration to operate may be revoked for any of the following causes:



(a)	Violation of any conditions of this registration.



(b)	Failure to disclose all the relevant facts, or misrepresentation in obtaining this registration.



(c)	Changes in regulatory requirements that mandate either a temporary or permanent reduction of discharge of contaminants.  However, the amendment of appropriate sections of this registration shall not require revocation of this registration.



(d)	For any cause which establishes in the judgment of IDEM the fact that continuance of this registration is not consistent with purposes of this article.



B.4	Prior Permits Superseded [326 IAC 2-1.1-9.5]

(a)	All terms and conditions of permits established prior to Registration No. 039-14366-00078 and issued pursuant to permitting programs approved into the state implementation plan have been either:



(1)	incorporated as originally stated,



(2)	revised, or



(3)	deleted.



(b)	All previous registrations and permits are superseded by this registration.



B.5	Annual Notification [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3):



(a)	An annual notification shall be submitted by an authorized individual to the Office of Air Quality stating whether or not the source is in operation and in compliance with the terms and conditions contained in this registration.



(b)	The annual notice shall be submitted in the format attached no later than March 1 of each year to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 61-53 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, IN 46204-2251



(c)	The notification shall be considered timely if the date postmarked on the envelope or certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due.



B.6	Source Modification Requirement [326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a), an application or notification shall be submitted in accordance with 326 IAC 2 to the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) if the source proposes to construct new emission units, modify existing emission units, or otherwise modify the source. 



B.7	Registrations [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i), this registration does not limit the source's potential to emit. 



B.8	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 1-6-3]

(a)	If required by specific condition(s) in Section D of this registration, the Registrant shall prepare and maintain Preventive Maintenance Plans (PMPs) no later than ninety (90) days after issuance of this registration or ninety (90) days after initial start-up, whichever is later, including the following information on each facility:



(1)	Identification of the individual(s) responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and repairing emission control devices;



(2)	A description of the items or conditions that will be inspected and the inspection schedule for said items or conditions; and



(3)	Identification and quantification of the replacement parts that will be maintained in inventory for quick replacement.



If, due to circumstances beyond the Registrant's control, the PMPs cannot be prepared and maintained within the above time frame, the Registrant may extend the date an additional ninety (90) days provided the Registrant notifies:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 61-53 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251



The Registrant shall implement the PMPs.



(b)	A copy of the PMPs shall be submitted to IDEM, OAQ upon request and within a reasonable time, and shall be subject to review and approval by IDEM, OAQ.  IDEM, OAQ may require the Registrant to revise its PMPs whenever lack of proper maintenance causes or is the primary contributor to an exceedance of any limitation on emissions.



(c) 	To the extent the Registrant is required by 40 CFR Part 60 or 40 CFR Part 63 to have an Operation Maintenance, and Monitoring (OMM) Plan for a unit, such OMM Plan is deemed to satisfy the PMP requirements of 326 IAC 1-6-3 for that unit.




SECTION C	SOURCE OPERATION CONDITIONS



		Entire Source







Emission Limitations and Standards  [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



C.1	Opacity  [326 IAC 5-1] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 5-1-2 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 5-1-3 (Temporary Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this registration:



 (a)	Opacity shall not exceed an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1) six (6) minute averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4.



 (b)	Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen (15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute non-overlapping integrated averages for a continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period.



C.2	Fugitive Dust Emissions  [326 IAC 6-4]

The Registrant shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions).  



Corrective Actions and Response Steps



C.3	Response to Excursions or Exceedances [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)]

Upon detecting an excursion where a response step is required by the D Section or an exceedance of a limitation in this registration:



(a)	The Registrant shall take reasonable response steps to restore operation of the emissions unit (including any control device and associated capture system) to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution control practices for minimizing excess emissions.



(b) 	The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction. The response may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	initial inspection and evaluation;



(2)	recording that operations returned or are returning to normal without operator action (such as through response by a computerized distribution control system); or



(3)	any necessary follow-up actions to return operation to normal or usual manner of operation.



(c)	A determination of whether the Registrant has used acceptable procedures in response to an excursion or exceedance will be based on information available, which may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	monitoring results;



(2)	review of operation and maintenance procedures and records; and/or



(3)	inspection of the control device, associated capture system, and the process.



(d)	Failure to take reasonable response steps shall be considered a deviation from the registration.



(e)	The Registrant shall record the reasonable response steps taken.



Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)]



C.4	General Record Keeping Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)]

(a)	Records of all required monitoring data, reports and support information required by this registration shall be retained for a period of at least five (5) years from the date of monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application.  These records shall be physically present or electronically accessible at the source location for a minimum of three (3) years.  The records may be stored elsewhere for the remaining two (2) years as long as they are available upon request.  If the Commissioner makes a request for records to the Registrant, the Registrant shall furnish the records to the Commissioner within a reasonable time.



(b)	Unless otherwise specified in this registration, for all record keeping requirements not already legally required, the Registrant shall be allowed up to ninety (90) days from the date of registration issuance or the date of initial start-up, whichever is later, to begin such record keeping.




SECTION D.1	OPERATION CONDITIONS



		

Facility Description [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(2)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(2)]:



(a)	Air Melt Atomization Towers furnaces, each equipped with a product cyclone that is considered integral to the process, and with two (2) fume hoods, located over the furnaces in the atomization towers, constructed in 2006, controlled by baghouse DC2-1, as follows:



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



(fh)	One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, using a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24 pounds of parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse.DC8. This booth is located in the Research and Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and testing for welding torches. 



(gi)	One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(j)	Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in 2018, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(k)	One (1) process dedicated dust collector identified as DC-12 for dust collection at the linishing equipment line discharging to Baghouse DC5.



(l)	One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with heat input capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and exhausting to Stk1.



Under 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, this unit is considered an affected facility.

Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, this unit is considered an affected new facility.







(The information describing the process contained in this facility description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(1)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(1)]



D.1.1	Particulate  [326 IAC 6-3-2]	

(a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes), the allowable particulate emission rate from the processes listed in the table below shall not exceed the following:



		Emission Unit

		Process Weight Rate (lbs/hr)

		Allowable PM Limit (lbs/hr)



		two (2) air melt atomization towers/DC1 and DC3

		800, each

		2.22, each



		cobalt classifying operation/DC4

		975

		2.53



		iron/nickel classifying operation/DC5

		975

		2.53





The pound per hour limitation was calculated with the following equation:



Interpolation of the data for the process weight rate up to sixty thousand (60,000) pounds per hour shall be accomplished by use of the equation:



E = 4.10 P 0.67		where	E = rate of emission in pounds per hour and

P = process weight rate in tons per hour





(b) 	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2(e)(2), the allowable particulate emissions from the fume hood, the castable rework, and the Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, and the welding powder spray coating booth (Booth A) shall not exceed 0.551 lbs/hr each.



D.1.2 	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 1-6-3]

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and any associated control devices.   Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Registrant's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.



Compliance Determination Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



D.1.3	Cyclone Operations	

In order to assure compliance with Condition D.1.1(a), the product cyclones associated with both air melt atomization towers must be in operation when the towers are in operation, as they are considered integral part of the process.



D.1.4	Baghouse Operations	

In order to assure compliance with Condition D.1.1(b), the baghouses shall be in operation when the processes are in operation.



Compliance Monitoring Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



D.1.5	Cyclone Inspection

An inspection shall be performed each calendar quarter of all cyclones controlling the two (2) air melt atomization towers, when exhausting to the atmosphere.  A cyclone inspection shall be performed within three months of redirecting vents to the atmosphere and every three months thereafter.  Inspections are optional when venting to the indoors.



D.1.6	Cyclone Failure Detection

	In the event that cyclone failure has been observed:



Failed units and the associated process will be shut down immmediately until the failed units have been repaired or replaced.  Failure to take response steps shall be considered a deviation from this permit



Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



D.1.7	Record Keeping Requirements

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.3, the Permittee shall maintain records of the inspections required under Condition D.1.5.



(b)	Section C - General Record Keeping Requirements contains the Registrant's obligations with regard to the records required by this condition.




SECTION E.1	NSPS



		

Emission Unit Description:



(a)	One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with a heat input capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and exhausting to Stk1.



Under 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, this unit is considered an affected facility.

Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, this unit is considered an affected new facility.



(The information describing the process contained in this facility description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







E.1.1	General Provisions Relating to New Source Performance Standards [326 IAC 12-1][40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.1, the Registrant shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A - General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 12-1, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII.



(b)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.4, the Registrant shall submit all required notifications and reports to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 61-53 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana  46204-2251



and



United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

Air and Radiation Division, Air Enforcement Branch - Indiana (AE-17J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590



E.1.2	Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines NSPS [326 IAC 12][40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII]

The Registrant shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII (included as Attachment A to the registration), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 12, for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 60.4200(a)(2)(i), (a)(4), and (c)

(2)	40 CFR 60.4205(b)

(3)	40 CFR 60.4206

(4)	40 CFR 60.4207(b)

(5)	40 CFR 60.4208(a)

(6)	40 CFR 60.4209(a)

(7)	40 CFR 60.4211(a), (c), (f), and (g)(2)

(8)	40 CFR 60.4214(b), and (d)

(9)	40 CFR 60.4218

(10)	40 CFR 60.4219

(11)	Table 5 to 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII 

(12)	Table 8 to 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII






SECTION E.2	NESHAP



		

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







[bookmark: _Hlk67993735]E.2.1	General Provisions Relating to National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 40 CFR Part 63 [326 IAC 20-1][40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.1 the Registrant shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A - General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 20-1, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ.



(b)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.10, the Registrant shall submit all required notifications and reports to:



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



E.2.2	Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines NESHAP [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ][326 IAC 20-82]

The Registrant shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ (included as Attachment B to the registration), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 20-82, for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 63.6580

(2)	40 CFR 63.6585

(3)	40 CFR 63.6590(a)(2)(iii) and (c)(1)

(4)	40 CFR 63.6595(a)(7)

(5)	40 CFR 63.6665

(6)	40 CFR 63.6670

(7)	40 CFR 63.6675  


INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH



REGISTRATION

ANNUAL NOTIFICATION



This form should be used to comply with the notification requirements under 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3).



		Company Name:	Kennametal Stellite LP



		Address:		1201 Eisenhower Dr N



		City:			Goshen, Indiana 46526



		Phone Number:	(574) 534-2585



		Registration No.:	039-14366-00078







		I hereby certify that Kennametal Stellite LP is:

		  still in operation.



		

		  no longer in operation.



		I hereby certify that Kennametal Stellite LP is:

		  in compliance with the requirements
of Registration No. 039-14366-00078.



		

		  not in compliance with the requirements
of Registration No. 039-14366-00078.







		Authorized Individual (typed):	



		Title:



		Signature:



		Phone Number:



		Date:







If there are any conditions or requirements for which the source is not in compliance, provide a narrative description of how the source did or will achieve compliance and the date compliance was, or will be achieved.

		Noncompliance:



		



		



		



		









		An Equal Opportunity Employer



		[image: StateWorksLogo_Vert_Blue]

		[image: Made from recycled]Recycled Paper
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Summary (current)

								Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

								PTE Summary



						Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

						Address City IN Zip:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

						Administrative Amendment Number:  		039-46685-00078

						Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann





		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit (tons/yr)

		Emission Unit		PM		PM10		PM2.5 *		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Total HAPs



		Spray Booth A		7.67		7.67		7.67		-		-		-		-		6.93

		Dust Collectors		6.39		0.64		0.64		-		-		-		-		4.62

		Emergency Generator		0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37		1.51E-03

		Natural Gas Torch		-		-		-		0.00		0.18		0.00		0.05		7.49E-06

		ThermJet Burners (Natural Gas)		-		-		-		0.00		0.89		0.02		0.22		3.61E-05

		Total		14.18		8.43		8.43		0.12		2.80		0.16		0.64		11.55

		* PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5



&8Page &P of &N, TSD App. A 




46685 modification

		Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

		Modification



								Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

								Source Address:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

								Permit Number:  		039-46685-00078

								Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann





		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit of New Units (tons/year)

		Emission Unit		PM		PM10		PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Combined HAPs		Single HAP (Formaldehyde)

		Emergency Generator		0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37		1.51E-03		4.60E-04

		Total (tons/year):  		0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37		1.51E-03		4.60E-04



		*PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5
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Summary (Amended)

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

		Dust Collectors		11.87		1.19		1.19		-		-		-		-		8.59

		Emergency Generator		0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37		1.51E-03

		Natural Gas Torch		-		-		-		0.00		0.18		0.00		0.05		7.49E-06

		ThermJet Burners (Natural Gas)		-		-		-		0.00		0.89		0.02		0.22		3.61E-05

		Total		19.66		8.97		8.97		0.12		2.80		0.16		0.64		15.52

		* PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5
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HAP Summary (current)

								Appendix A: Emission Calculations

								PTE Summary



						Company Name:   		Kennametal Stellite LP

						Source Address:   		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

						Permit Number:   		039-46685-00078

						Reviewer:   		Sarah Germann



		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit HAPs (ton/year)

		Pollutant/Emission Unit		Spray Booth A*		Dust Collectors		Emergency Generator		NG Torch		ThermJet Burners		Total Each HAP

		Acetaldehyde		--		--		2.99E-04		-		-		2.99E-04

		Acrolein		--		--		3.61E-05		-		-		3.61E-05

		Benzene		--		--		3.64E-04		2.23E-06		1.08E-05		3.77E-04

		1,3-Butadiene		--		--		1.53E-05		-		-		1.53E-05

		Chromium		5.40		1.11		--		-		-		6.51E+00

		Cobalt		0.77		2.29				-		-		3.06E+00

		Formaldehyde		--		--		4.60E-04		4.73E-06		2.28E-05		4.88E-04

		Nickel		1.53		1.22		--		-		-		2.75E+00

		Toluene		--		--		1.60E-04		-		-		1.60E-04

		Xylene		--		--		1.11E-04		-		-		1.11E-04

		Worst Case Single HAP (Chromium)												6.51

		Totals		6.93		4.62		1.45E-03		-		-		11.55



		Note:

		*Combined HAP total for the spray booth is based on the alloy with the highest 

		HAP content, so combined HAP entry is not the sum of the rows above.



&8Page &P of &N, TSD App. A 




HAP Summary (Amended)

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

		Chromium		5.40		2.07		--		-		-		7.47E+00

		Cobalt		0.77		4.25				-		-		5.02E+00

		Formaldehyde		--		--		4.60E-04		4.73E-06		2.28E-05		4.88E-04

		Nickel		1.53		2.26		--		-		-		3.80E+00

		Toluene		--		--		1.60E-04		-		-		1.60E-04

		Xylene		--		--		1.11E-04		-		-		1.11E-04

		Worst Case Single HAP (Chromium)												7.47

		Totals		6.93		8.59		1.45E-03		-		-		15.52



		Note:

		*Combined HAP total for the spray booth is based on the alloy with the highest 

		HAP content, so combined HAP entry is not the sum of the rows above.



&8Page &P of &N, TSD App. A 




powder

								Appendix A:		Emission Calculations

										VOC and PM/PM10 Emissions

										Laboratory Powder Coating Process



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





		 

		Unit ID		Process		Maximum Usage (lbs/hr)		**Maximum Spray Time (hrs/yr)		Transfer Efficiency		*PM/PM10/PM2.5 Potential               (lb/hr)		*PM/PM10/PM2.5 Potential      (ton/yr)		Control Eff. %		Controlled PM/PM10/PM2.5      (ton/yr)

		A		R&D		20		1095		30%		14.00		7.67		99%		0.08



		* Assume all the PM emissions are PM10 and PM2.5 emissions.

		** The maximum spray time is based on 1.75 hr setup time for each 0.25 hr coating R&D project:

		8,760 hr/yr * 0.25 spray hr / (1.75 + 0.25 ) project hr = 1,095 hr/yr

		Source provided transfer efficiency of 30% based on operating experience



		METHODOLOGY



		Potential VOC (lbs/hr) = Max. Usage (lbs/hr) * Weight % Organics

		Potential VOC (tons/yr) = Max. Usage (lbs/hr) * Weight % Organics * (8760 hr/yr) * (1 ton/2000 lbs)

		Potential PM/PM10 (lbs/hr) = Max. Usage (lbs/hr) * (1- Weight % Volatile) * (1-Transfer Efficiency) 

		Potential PM/PM10 (tons/yr) = Max. Usage (lbs/hr) * (1- Weight % Volatile) * (1-Transfer Efficiency) * Max. Spray Time (hrs/yr) *(1 ton/2000 lbs)
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powder-HAP

														Appendix A:		Emission Calculations

																 HAP Emissions

																Laboratory Spray Booth with Powder Coating Process



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







		Booth		Coatings*		Maximum Usage (lbs/hr)		Maximum Spray Time** (hrs/yr)		Transfer Efficiency (%)		Weight % Chromium		 Chromium Emissions (lb/hr))		 Chromium Emissions (tons/yr)		Weight % Nickel		 Nickel Emissions (lb/hr))		Nickel Emissions (tons/yr)		Weight % Cobalt		 Cobalt Emissions (lb/hr))		Cobalt Emissions (tons/yr)		Combined HAPs (lb/hr))		Combined HAPs (tons/yr)

		A		Stelcar 9135		20.0		1,095		30%		70.4%		9.86		5.40		20.0%		2.80		1.53		0.0%		0.00		0.00		12.66		6.93

		A		Stelcar 9120		20.0		1,095		30%		4.0%		0.56		0.31		0.0%		0.00		0.00		10.0%		1.40		0.77		1.96		1.07

		Booth A worst case before controls***												9.86		5.40				2.80		1.53				1.40		0.77		12.66		6.93

		Total after controls						control efficiency		99%				0.10		0.05				0.03		0.02				0.01		0.01		0.13		0.07

		* These coatings are not produced at the source, they are purchased for resale and R&D

		**  The maximum spray time is based on 1.75 hr setup time for each 0.25 hr coating R&D project:

		8,760 hr/yr * 0.25 spray hr / (1.75 + 0.25 ) project hr = 1,095 hr/yr

		*** Only one type of coating can be applied for each booth at the same time. Therefore, the worst case scenario is using the highest HAP content coating.

		Source provided transfer efficiency of 30% based on operating experience

		METHODOLOGY

		HAPs emission rate (tons/yr) = Max. Usage (lbs/hr) x (1- Transfer Efficiency) x Weight % HAP x Max. Spray Time (hrs/yr) x 1 ton/2000 lbs
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Dust Collectors (current)

										Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

										Dust Collectors for Manufacturing Processes



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





		Particulate



												Before Controls						After Controls

		Emission Unit ID		Unit ID/Control Device		Actual Quantity of Dust Collected1		Control Efficiency		PM Emissions		PM10 Emissions2		PM2.5 Emissions2		PM Emissions		PM10 Emissions		PM2.5 Emissions

						lb/hr				(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)

		DC1		Air Melt Tower		0.247		99.90%		1.08		0.11		0.11		1.08E-03		1.08E-04		1.08E-04

		DC2-1		Fume Hood3,6		0.195		99.90%		0.85		0.09		0.09		8.53E-04		8.53E-05		8.53E-05

		DC3		Air Melt Tower4		0.247		99.90%		1.08		0.11		0.11		1.08E-03		1.08E-04		1.08E-04

		DC4		Cobalt Classifying		0.024		99.90%		0.11		0.01		0.01		1.05E-04		1.05E-05		1.05E-05

		DC5		Iron/Nickel Classifying		0.549		99.90%		2.41		0.24		0.24		2.41E-03		2.41E-04		2.41E-04

		DC7		Castable Rework5		0.123		99.90%		0.54		0.05		0.05		5.39E-04		5.39E-05		5.39E-05

		DC9		Rod/Wire Casting5		0.073		99.90%		0.32		0.03		0.03		3.20E-04		3.20E-05		3.20E-05

				Total PTE						6.39		0.64		0.64		6.39E-03		6.39E-04		6.39E-04



		Notes

		1. Maximum quantities of PM collected per hour provided by source, ref. R039-14366-00078

		2. PM10 and PM2.5 are considered to be 10% of the PM emissions, ref: R039-14366-00078

		3. New dust collector installed in 2006, no change in PTE, ref. R039-27309-00078

		4. Air melt atomization tower replaced original vacuum melt tower in 2007, PTE assumed the same as DC1, ref. R039-25404-00078

		5. New DC9 installed for castable rework process - no change in process PTE, DC6 moved to new rod/wire casting process

		 - PTE assumed the same as induction furnace fume hood (DC2), 2010, ref. R039-29603-00078

		6. Fume hood PTE revised based on replacement specs for Baghouse DC-2.

		HAPs

								Uncontrolled HAP PTE Estimate7

		Emission Unit ID		Unit ID/Control Device		PM Emissions before Controls8		Chromium content		Chromium emissions		Nickel content		Nickel emissions		Cobalt content		Cobalt emissions

						(tons/yr)		(wt %)		(tons/yr)		(wt %)		(tons/yr)		(wt %)		(tons/yr)

		DC1		Air Melt Tower		1.08		17%		0.19		19%		0.21		36%		0.39

		DC2-1		Fume Hood		0.85		17%		1.49E-01		19%		1.63E-01		36%		3.06E-01

		DC3		Air Melt Tower		1.08		17%		0.19		19%		0.21		36%		0.39

		DC4		Cobalt Classifying		0.11		17%		1.83E-02		19%		2.01E-02		36%		3.77E-02

		DC5		Iron.Nickel Classifying		2.41		17%		0.42		19%		0.46		36%		8.62E-01

		DC7		Castable Rework9		0.54		17%		9.40E-02		19%		1.03E-01		36%		1.93E-01

		DC9		Rod/Wire Casting		0.32		17%		5.58E-02		19%		6.10E-02		36%		1.15E-01

				worst-case single HAP						1.11				1.22				2.29

				worst case combined HAPs								4.62

		Notes (numbers continued from table above)

		7. Source provided waste characterization data for the dust

		8. PM emissions are the same as the table above

		9. Castable rework emissions from removing refractory liner from furnaces, particulate assumed to be 90% refractory/10% Stellite alloys



								Controlled HAP PTE Estimate

		Emission Unit ID		Unit ID/Control Device		Control Efficiency		Chromium emissions		Nickel emissions		Cobalt emissions

								(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)		(tons/yr)

		DC1		Air Melt Tower		99.9%		1.89E-04		2.07E-04		3.88E-04

		DC2-1		Fume Hood		99.9%		1.49E-04		1.63E-04		3.06E-04

		DC3		Air Melt Tower		99.9%		1.89E-04		2.07E-04		3.88E-04

		DC4		Cobalt Classifying		99.9%		1.83E-05		2.01E-05		3.77E-05

		DC5		Iron.Nickel Classifying		99.9%		4.20E-04		4.59E-04		8.62E-04

		DC7		Castable Rework		99.9%		9.40E-05		1.03E-04		1.93E-04

		DC9		Rod/Wire Casting		99.9%		5.58E-05		6.10E-05		1.15E-04

				worst-case single HAP				1.11E-03		1.22E-03		2.29E-03

				worst case combined HAPs				4.62E-03





		Methodology

		Emissions before controls, lb/hr = Actual Quantity of Dust Collected (lbs/hr) /  control effciency, %

		Emissions before controls, US tons/yr = (Emissions before controls, lb/hr) x (8760 hr/yr) / (2000 lb/US ton)

		Emissions after controls = Emissions before controls x (1 - control efficiency, %)

		New DC-2 Baghouse Actual Quantity of Dust Collected (lb/hr) = Old Baghouse Actual Quantity of Dust Collected (lb/hr)  x [New Baghouse Air Volume (ACFM) / Old Baghouse Air Volume (ACFM)]
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Dust Collectors (Amended)

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

		DC12		Linishing Line6a		1.250		99.90%		5.48		0.55		0.55		5.48E-03		5.48E-04		5.48E-04

				Total PTE						11.87		1.19		1.19		1.19E-02		1.19E-03		1.19E-03



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

		6a. Throughput based on 8760 hrs/year at maximum of 50lbs/hr. Typical usage is approximately 15lbs/hr.

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

		DC12		Linishing Line6a		5.48		17%		9.55E-01		19%		1.05E+00		36%		1.96E+00

				worst-case single HAP						2.07				2.26				4.25

				worst case combined HAPs								8.59

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

		DC12		Linishing Line6a		99.9%		9.55E-04		1.05E-03		1.96E-03

				worst-case single HAP				2.07E-03		2.26E-03		4.25E-03

				worst case combined HAPs				8.59E-03





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
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Emergency Generator

										Appendix A:  Emission Calculations

										Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines - Diesel Fuel

										Output Rating (<=600 HP)

										Maximum Input Rate (<=4.2 MMBtu/hr)



								Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

								Source Address:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

								Permit Number:  		039-46685-00078

								Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann





		Emissions calculated based on output rating (hp)



						Output Horsepower Rating (hp)  		223.0

						Maximum Hours Operated per Year  		500

						Potential Throughput (hp-hr/yr)  		111,500



												Pollutant

						PM*		PM10*		direct PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO

		Emission Factor in lb/hp-hr				0.0022		0.0022		0.0022		0.00205		0.0310		0.0025		0.00668

		Potential Emission in tons/yr				0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37

		*PM and PM2.5 emission factors are assumed to be equivalent to PM10 emission factors.  No information was given regarding which method was used to determine the factor or the fraction of PM10 which is condensable.





		Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

												Pollutant

																				Total PAH

						Benzene		Toluene		Xylene		1,3-Butadiene		Formaldehyde		Acetaldehyde		Acrolein		HAPs***

		Emission Factor in lb/hp-hr****				6.53E-06		2.86E-06		2.00E-06		2.74E-07		8.26E-06		5.37E-06		6.48E-07		1.18E-06

		Potential Emission in tons/yr				3.64E-04		1.60E-04		1.11E-04		1.53E-05		4.60E-04		2.99E-04		3.61E-05		6.56E-05

		***PAH = Polyaromatic Hydrocarbon  (PAHs are considered HAPs, since they are considered Polycyclic Organic Matter)

		****Emission factors in lb/hp-hr were calculated using emission factors in lb/MMBtu and a brake specific fuel consumption of 7,000 Btu / hp-hr (AP-42 Table 3.3-1).



																		Potential Emission of Total HAPs (tons/yr)  		1.51E-03



		Methodology

		Emission Factors are from AP 42 (Supplement B 10/96) Tables 3.3-1 and 3.3-2.

		Potential Throughput (hp-hr/yr) = [Output Horsepower Rating (hp)] * [Maximum Hours Operated per Year]

		Potential Emission (tons/yr) = [Potential Throughput (hp-hr/yr)] * [Emission Factor (lb/hp-hr)] / [2,000 lb/ton]
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Torch PTE

										Appendix A:  Emission Calculations

										Belchfire Mono Torch - Model 35

										Maximum Input  Potential = 325,000 BTU/hr



								Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

								Source Address:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

								Permit Number:  		039-46685-00078

								Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann

		Specifications:

tc={1CF70054-EC40-4C31-98A7-756E11C69932}: [Threaded comment]

Your version of Excel allows you to read this threaded comment; however, any edits to it will get removed if the file is opened in a newer version of Excel. Learn more: https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?linkid=870924

Comment:
    Details and methodology saved on "hidden" tab.  Unhide to view		Mono 35 Gas Torch						CRITERIA POLLUTANTS

				Portable Heating Torch								Emission Factor(1)				NG Throughput (Annual)(2)

				Fuel Source		Natural Gas				Pollutant		value		units		(scf)		(MMCF)		NOx 
(lbs/year)		NOx (tons/yr)

				Fuel Consumption (BTU input):		325,000				NOx		1.40E+02		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		367.92		0.18

				Fuel Consumption (CFH input):		300				SOx		6.00E-01		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		1.58		0.00

				Hours Maximum(2)		8,760				VOC		2.80E+00		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		7.36		0.00

				Monthly Operating hours 		352				CO(4)		3.50E+01		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		91.98		0.05

				(Projected) Annual operating hours (3) :		4,224				1. Emission factors from USEPA WebFire database. SCC 30490003 (Industrial Processes; Primary/Secondary Metal Production; Fuel Fired Equipment; Natural Gas: Process Heaters

				Flame Temperature:		2,000 F				2.  Hours Maximum = 24 hrs at 365 days

				HHV		1,020				3.  Hours calcuated at 22 days per month; Two 8 hour shifts per day = 352 hrs/month = 4,224 hrs / year

				EPA WebFIRE SCC		30390003				4. Emission Factor for CO and HAPs from AQMD Combustion Default Emission Factors 

										AQMD Emission Factor Link

										Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

												Emission Factor(4)				NG Throughput (Annual)(2)

										Pollutant		value		units		(scf)		(MMCF)		NOx 
(lbs/year)		NOx (tons/yr)

										Benzene		1.70E-03		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		0.00		0.00

										Formaldehyde		3.60E-03		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		0.01		0.00

										PAHs		4.00E-04		lb/MMCF		2628000		2.628		0.00		0.00

										Total HAPs												0.00
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http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/planning/annual-emission-reporting/combustion-emission-factors-2021.pdf

Torch Details

				https://belchfire.com/shop/mono-35-gas-torch/



Notes:
9/27/23 - Added information to include on permit revision application to address the "Torch" in use at the facility. (m. graves)

Information from KMT regarding Torch:

- In use approximately 22 hours per month
- 500,000 btu/hr rating (propane)
- Currently being fired with propane.  looking to convert to NG in November/December 2023
- Manufacturer = Belchfire.com 
- Product Link = https://belchfire.com/shop/mono-35-gas-torch/


https://belchfire.com/shop/mono-35-gas-torch/

ThermJet PTE

										Appendix A:  Emission Calculations

										Eclipse ThermJet Burners

										Maximum Input  Potential = 250,000 BTU/hr (each)



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

tc={6CFF9D38-1CD3-4C52-B967-2C028BE3DDB0}: [Threaded comment]

Your version of Excel allows you to read this threaded comment; however, any edits to it will get removed if the file is opened in a newer version of Excel. Learn more: https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?linkid=870924

Comment:
    Details and methodology saved on "hidden" tab.  Unhide to view
		Eclipse ThermJet Burners						CRITERIA POLLUTANTS

				Low NOx velocity burners								Emission Factor(1)				NG Throughput (Annual)(3)				per Burner				Total PTE (6 Burners)

				Fuel Source		Natural Gas				Pollutant		value		units		(scf)		(MMCF)		lbs/year		tons/yr		tons/yr

				Fuel Consumption (BTU/hr):		250,000				NOx		1.40E+02		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		295.66		0.15		0.89

				Fuel Consumption (CFH input) (2):		241				SOx		6.00E-01		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		1.27		0.00		0.00

				Hours Maximum(3)		8,760				VOC		2.80E+00		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		5.91		0.00		0.02

				Weekly Operating Hours:		80				CO		3.50E+01		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		73.92		0.04		0.22

				(Projected) Annual operating hours (4) :		4,160

				Number of Burners		6				1. Emission factors from USEPA WebFire database. SCC 30490003 (Industrial Processes; Primary/Secondary Metal Production; Fuel Fired Equipment; Natural Gas: Process Heaters

				HHV		1,020				2. Conversion:  1CF of NG = 1037 BTU

				EPA WebFIRE SCC		30390003				3. Hours Maximum = 24 hrs at 365 days

										4. Hours calcuated at 5 days per week; Two 8 hour shifts per day = 80hr/week; @ 52 weeks = 4,160 hrs / year

										5. Emission Factor for CO and HAPs from AQMD Combustion Default Emission Factors 

										AQMD Emission Factor Link



										Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

												Emission Factor(5)				NG Throughput (Annual)(3)				per Burner				Total PTE (6 Burners)

										Pollutant		value		units		(scf)		(MMCF)		lbs/year		tons/yr		tons/yr

										Benzene		1.70E-03		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		0.00		0.00		0.00

										Formaldehyde		3.60E-03		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		0.01		0.00		0.00

										PAHs		4.00E-04		lb/MMCF		2,111,861		2.11		0.00		0.00		0.00

										Total HAPs														0.00
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http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/planning/annual-emission-reporting/combustion-emission-factors-2021.pdf

ThermJet Burners

																		Eclipse ThermJet Burners - TJ0025

				https://marshallwnelson.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/eclipse_tj_tjpca_tech_info_11_20.pdf



Notes: 
9/27/23 - KMT has these in use but are currently not listed on the air permit.  They are looking to have them added.

Info from KMT:
- Manufacturer = Eclipse
- Model = ThermJet TJ0025
- Currently used in NG fired oven
- Oven has 6 of these burners
- Currently NG fired
- Each burner @ 250,000 BTU/hr
- Operated ~ 5 days/week; ~16 hrs/day; 2 shifts (8hrs each)
- Only have 1 oven with the 6 burners

https://docuthek.kromschroeder.com/documents/download.php?lang=de&doc=45869https://marshallwnelson.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/eclipse_tj_tjpca_tech_info_11_20.pdf
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DESCRIPTION REVIEWS (0)

Input Potential: 500,000 BTU per Hour

Fuel Pressure: Minimum 15 PSIG

Flame Temperature: 2,000 Degrees Fahrenheit
Combustion Chamber Diameter: 3.5 Inches
Length: 28 Inches

Weight: 4 Lbs

Fuel Connection: 1/2 Inch NPT
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« Capacity range: 150,000 to 20,000,000
Btu/hr. (44 to 5860 kW)

« Turndown: 50:1

« Max. process temperature: 2800°F
(1540°C)

« Fuels: natural gas, propane, butane

Request a Quote

Share this product
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Technical
Honeywell Eclipse ThermJet or TJ direct fire burners feature the highest flame velocities available.

The industry standard for velocity burners, the low NOx ThermJet represents a technological leap forward
in every area of design and performance. Comparison tests show that ThermJet delivers the lowest
emissions of any competitive model. Integrated gas and air orifices simplify burner piping, set-up and
adjustment. Air and gas inlets are independently adjustable in 90-degree increments to suit a variety of
piping alternatives.

The burners are available in 14 sizes with maximum capacities ranging from 150,000 to 20,000,000 Btu/hr.
All models are also available for use with preheated combustion air. Installation, operation and
maintenance are simple and cost effective. Eclipse ThermJet direct fire burners are made to last — with
rugged Eclipse dependability and reliability built in.
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Application

Typical applications include: tempering furnaces, hardening furnaces, reheating furnaces, fluidized bed
driers, thermal oxidizers, non-ferrous melting, ladle/tundish, glass lehrs, environmental applications, and
preheated air.

Ask us for engineering or product support to configure your burner.
Eclipse ThermJet (TJ) and TJPCA (Pre Combustion Air) Burner sizes and capacity:

TJ0015 and TJPCA0015 Max Input, 150,000 Btu/hr. (40 kW)
TJ0025 and TJPCA0025 Max Input, 250,000 Btu/hr. (67 kW)
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
mailto:matt.graves1@aecom.com


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
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:15:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

After a quick glance it looks like you have all the forms to apply. The permit reviewer will look at it
more closely once it has gone through intake and is assigned.
 
 

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
Sent: Thursday, November 2, 2023 11:15 AM
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
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:17:25 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Great!!  Thanks for the quick check up.  We will be submitting early next week after we get the
internal Kennametal signatures.
 
Thanks for your guidance in this process.
 
Matt
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:15 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>
Subject: RE: Follow-up and question
 
After a quick glance it looks like you have all the forms to apply. The permit reviewer will look at it more closely once it has gone through intake and is assigned. Indiana Department of Environmental Management Sarah Germann Environmental

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
To: Randy Porter; Graves, Matt
Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP
Date: Monday, February 26, 2024 2:59:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Randy Porter and Matthew Graves,
 
I am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite
LP.  I would like to extend to you my contact information so that we may have continued communication
until your new permit is issued.  Please keep this information at hand.  It is common for questions to arise,
and oftentimes, further clarification is needed during the permit review process. 
 
Am I correct in assuming the calculations spreadsheet and permit markup which Mr. Graves sent to my
email on 2/20/2024 are the most up-to-date versions? If not, send be the most recent excel and word
documents. Have the new units been constructed already? When were they, or when will they be,
constructed?
 
IDEM, OAQ will notify you when a draft permit has been submitted for public notice and/or when a final
permit has been issued.  As part of the notification, IDEM, OAQ will provide information on how to access
the draft and/or final permit electronically on IDEM's website.  If Kennametal Stellite LP would prefer to
receive paper copies of the entire draft and/or final permit, please let me know prior to the end of the
applicant review period.  If you prefer to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will mail a
paper copy of the draft permit and/or original signed final permit to the source contact.  If you do not
request to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will only mail a paper copy of the original
signed final permit signature page to the source contact.
 
Please feel free to contact me at any time if you have questions, concerns, or important information
regarding your permit.  For your convenience, my section chief (Heath Hartley) may be contacted at 317-
232-8217 or HHartley@idem.IN.gov.
 
Thank you in advance for your time and assistance.  I look forward to working with you.
 
Sincerely,
 
Sarah Germann
Environmental Manager, Office of Air Quality
Indiana Department of Environmental Management
Direct Phone: 317-234-6555
Fax: 317-232-6749
Email:  SRGerman@idem.IN.gov
 
 
 
 

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
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM); Randy Porter
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP
Date: Thursday, February 29, 2024 2:55:48 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
Thank you for the follow up email.  Please see below for the details you requested.
 

1. The word docs and calculations spreadsheet submitted via email (excel file) are the most
current.

2. The units requested to be added to the permit have already been constructed and are
currently in use.  The units were recently identified by KMT as having been omitted from the
previous permit(s) after a review of the modification to the Registration/Permit completed by
IDEM in August of 2023.

a. The approximate installation dates are as follows:
                                                        i.     Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (circa 1985)
                                                       ii.     Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Installed 2011)
                                                      iii.     Process dust collector (DC12) originally installed 2011 and will be repurposed at

the linishing line upon permit/registration modification.
                                                      iv.     Sintering station furnace (Installed 2011)

3. As previously mentioned, the combustion sources are currently operating on propane and will
be switched to natural gas upon completion of the permit/registration modification.

 
If you have any other questions, please let me know.
 
Thanks,
Matt
 
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 3:00 PM
To: Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>; Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>
Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite LP
 
Dear Randy Porter and Matthew Graves, I am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP. I would like to extend to you my contact information so that we may have continued communication

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
To: Graves, Matt; Randy Porter
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP
Date: Thursday, March 14, 2024 3:21:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello,
 
I am looking at your calcs some more. What are you doing with your new units?
(6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (Thermal Jet): What type of metal are you heating with the
burners?
Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Torch PTE): Are you doing some sort of welding with the heating
torches? What are you heating (type of metal)?
Sintering station furnace:  What type of metals are you heating and molding together?
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 29, 2024 2:56 PM
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter
<randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
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
                                                                           i.      Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (circa 1985)
                                                                         ii.      Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Installed 2011)
                                                                        iii.      Process dust collector (DC12) originally installed 2011 and will be

repurposed at the linishing line upon permit/registration modification.
                                                                        iv.      Sintering station furnace (Installed 2011)

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
Date: Monday, March 25, 2024 4:22:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Matt,
 
I am working on the draft for Kennametal and have a follow up question about the Linishing
line and the new baghouse. It is my understanding that the Linishing line (or is it Finishing line?)
was already a part of the source. Was the linishing line included in the pervious permitting
action? Where is this line in the previous permit and previous calculations? Adding dust
collector DC12 has increased the PTE of the source. If the Linishing line was already included
in the PTE of the previous permit’s calculation, then the PTE should not have increased by
adding a dust collector/control device.
 
 

Indiana Department of 
Environmental Management
 

Sarah Germann
Environmental Manager
• (317) 234-6555  •  srgerman@idem.IN.gov  

Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment

 
 
From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) 
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 12:12 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Cc: Chevalier, Laura <laura.chevalier@aecom.com>
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite LP
 

Thank you for the information.
 
 

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
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 12:09 PM
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
 
I’ve discussed your questions with Randy and his team from Kennametal.  The clarification responses
to your questions are as follows in RED:
 
 

1. What are you doing with your new units?
a. (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (Thermal Jet): What type of metal are you heating

with the burners?
                                          i.    No metal is actually heated with the thermal jets (tower burners). The burners

are used to heat up the tundish (funnel like structure) to keep molten alloy
poured into the tundish from solidifying / freezing on the surface of the
tundish which would block the flow if not heated.  The molten alloy then
goes into the tower where it is converted to a powder material for
additional processing.

 
 

b. Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Torch PTE):
 

                                                              i.      Are you doing some sort of welding with the heating torches?
1. No welding is taking place in this process.  The heating torch keeps the

ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying / freezing off
to the surface of the ladle.

 
 
                                                             ii.      What are you heating (type of metal)?

1. The inner surface of the ladle (refractory) is heated by the torch.  The
inner refractory lining is the contact point for the molten metal in the
process.

 
 

c. Sintering station furnace:  What type of metals are you heating and molding together?
                                          i.    The sintering station serves to heat / cure the refractory of a caster that is used

in the production of metal rods from the molten alloy.  The torch of the
sintering station does not heat metal but rather is used to heat the
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refractory of the caster to remove any residual moisture prior to the
addition of molten metal in the process.

 
 
Please let us know if you have any additional questions or need further clarification.
 
Thanks,
Matt
 
 
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 3:22 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite LP
 
Hello, I am looking at your calcs some more. What are you doing with your new units? (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (Thermal Jet): What type of metal are you heating with the burners? Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Torch PTE): 
 

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
Date: Monday, March 25, 2024 5:27:55 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown
senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
The Linisher (yes, Linisher / linishing line) previously collected dust to a local indoors canister/drum and accordingly, was not in the
previous permits.  The facility is looking to redirect the dust collection from that indoor / local collection canister and reroute it /
combine it into Baghouse DC5.  The calculations submitted to you with this application account for that increased load to Baghouse
DC5.
 
Suggested permit edits clipped below from the Redline document previously submitted. Item (k).
 

 
Let me know if you have any other questions.
 
Thanks again,
Matt
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Monday, March 25, 2024 4:23 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Cc: Chevalier, Laura <laura.chevalier@aecom.com>
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP
 
Hello Matt, I am working on the draft for Kennametal and have a follow up question about the Linishing line and the new baghouse. It is my understanding that the Linishing line (or is it Finishing line?) was already a part of the source. Was

Hello Matt,
 
I am working on the draft for Kennametal and have a follow up question about the Linishing line and the new baghouse. It is
my understanding that the Linishing line (or is it Finishing line?) was already a part of the source. Was the linishing line
included in the pervious permitting action? Where is this line in the previous permit and previous calculations? Adding dust
collector DC12 has increased the PTE of the source. If the Linishing line was already included in the PTE of the previous
permit’s calculation, then the PTE should not have increased by adding a dust collector/control device.
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Kennametal Stellite LP Administrative Amendment No. 039-46685-00078 Page 3 of 14

Goshen, Indiana

Amended by: Sarah Germann Registration No. 039-14366-00078

Permit Reviewer: ERG/RB

()

(el)

(i)

(k)

One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002,
using a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24
pounds of parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC8. This booth is located in the
Research and Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and
testing for welding torches.

One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient
room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.

Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in
2018, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the
building.

One (1) process dedicated dust collector identified as DC12 for dust collection at the

linishing equipment line discharging to Baghouse DC5.






 
 

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
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
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
 
I’ve discussed your questions with Randy and his team from Kennametal.  The clarification responses to your questions are as
follows in RED:
 
 

1. What are you doing with your new units?
a. (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (Thermal Jet): What type of metal are you heating with the burners?

                                               i.     No metal is actually heated with the thermal jets (tower burners). The burners are used to heat up the
tundish (funnel like structure) to keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from solidifying / freezing on
the surface of the tundish which would block the flow if not heated.  The molten alloy then goes into the
tower where it is converted to a powder material for additional processing.

 
 

b. Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Torch PTE):
 

                                                              i.      Are you doing some sort of welding with the heating torches?
1. No welding is taking place in this process.  The heating torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent

molten metal from solidifying / freezing off to the surface of the ladle.
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                                                             ii.      What are you heating (type of metal)?

1. The inner surface of the ladle (refractory) is heated by the torch.  The inner refractory lining is the
contact point for the molten metal in the process.

 
 

c. Sintering station furnace:  What type of metals are you heating and molding together?
                                               i.     The sintering station serves to heat / cure the refractory of a caster that is used in the production of metal

rods from the molten alloy.  The torch of the sintering station does not heat metal but rather is used to
heat the refractory of the caster to remove any residual moisture prior to the addition of molten metal in
the process.

 
 
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
(6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (Thermal Jet): What type of metal are you heating with the burners?
Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Torch PTE): Are you doing some sort of welding with the heating torches? What are you heating
(type of metal)?
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
mailto:randy.porter@kennametal.com
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
 

1. The word docs and calculations spreadsheet submitted via email (excel file) are the most current.
2. The units requested to be added to the permit have already been constructed and are currently in use.  The units were recently

identified by KMT as having been omitted from the previous permit(s) after a review of the modification to the
Registration/Permit completed by IDEM in August of 2023.

a. The approximate installation dates are as follows:
                                                                           i.      Air Melt Atomization Tower burners (circa 1985)
                                                                         ii.      Rod/Wire casting process heating torch (Installed 2011)
                                                                        iii.      Process dust collector (DC12) originally installed 2011 and will be repurposed at the linishing line upon

permit/registration modification.
                                                                        iv.      Sintering station furnace (Installed 2011)

3. As previously mentioned, the combustion sources are currently operating on propane and will be switched to natural gas upon
completion of the permit/registration modification.

 
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
 
I am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite LP.  I would like to extend to you
my contact information so that we may have continued communication until your new permit is issued.  Please keep this information at
hand.  It is common for questions to arise, and oftentimes, further clarification is needed during the permit review process. 
 
Am I correct in assuming the calculations spreadsheet and permit markup which Mr. Graves sent to my email on 2/20/2024 are the most
up-to-date versions? If not, send be the most recent excel and word documents. Have the new units been constructed already? When
were they, or when will they be, constructed?
 
IDEM, OAQ will notify you when a draft permit has been submitted for public notice and/or when a final permit has been issued.  As part of
the notification, IDEM, OAQ will provide information on how to access the draft and/or final permit electronically on IDEM's website.  If
Kennametal Stellite LP would prefer to receive paper copies of the entire draft and/or final permit, please let me know prior to the end of
the applicant review period.  If you prefer to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will mail a paper copy of the draft permit
and/or original signed final permit to the source contact.  If you do not request to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will
only mail a paper copy of the original signed final permit signature page to the source contact.
 
Please feel free to contact me at any time if you have questions, concerns, or important information regarding your permit.  For your
convenience, my section chief (Heath Hartley) may be contacted at 317-232-8217 or HHartley@idem.IN.gov.
 
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
Subject: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 1:35:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

47548calcs.xlsx
47548let.docx
47548per.docx
47548tsd.docx

Dear Randy Porter and Matthew Graves:
 
Attached please find the draft Registration Revision and supporting documents for review.  As a courtesy,
this draft is being provided to you for an opportunity to review and provide comments prior to the issuance
of the permit approval. 
 
The time clock for Registration Revision permit No.: 039-47548-00078 will be stopped during your review
until you either provide comments or indicate that you do not have any comments.  Due to permit
accountability and IDEM's intention to issue the permit in a timely manner, you are being allotted one
week to provide comments in writing.  If you have any conflicts or special circumstances that would
impede your review process during the time allotted, please notify me directly at the email address or
phone number listed below as soon as possible.  If you have not responded on or before April 8, 2024,
IDEM will assume that you have no comments pertaining to this draft and all files will be forwarded for
issuance.
 
During this review period, I will be available to address your concerns, answer any questions that you
may have, or make necessary revisions to this draft.
 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-1.1-7, the fee for this permitting action is expected to be $600, which is based on
the following:
 

$600 Registration Revision
 
Please note: This is not a bill.  This represents the anticipated fee and is subject to change if additional
review is required or the permit level changes for some reason (e.g. an additional NESHAP review is
required).  You will receive a final bill from the OAQ Permits Administration and Support Section.
 
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
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Summary

								Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

								PTE Summary



						Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

						Address City IN Zip:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

						Administrative Amendment Number:  		039-47548-00078

						Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann





		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit (tons/yr)

		Emission Unit		PM		PM10		PM2.5 *		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Single Highest HAP		Total HAPs

																		(Chromium)

		Powder coating Booth A		7.67		7.67		7.67		-		-		-		-		5.40		6.93

		Dust Collectors		11.87		1.19		1.19		-		-		-		-		2.07		8.59

		Emergency Generator		0.12		0.12		0.12		0.11		1.73		0.14		0.37		-		1.51E-03

		Casting process heating torch		2.65E-03		0.01		0.01		8.37E-04		0.14		0.01		0.12		1.95E-06		2.63E-03

		Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners)		2.04E-03		0.01		0.01		6.44E-04		0.11		0.01		0.09		1.50E-06		2.03E-03

		Sintering Station funace		0.05		0.20		0.20		0.02		2.58		0.14		2.16		3.61E-05		4.86E-02

		Total		19.71		9.19		9.19		0.13		4.55		0.30		2.74		7.47		15.57

		* PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5
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HAP Summary

								Appendix A: Emission Calculations

								PTE Summary



						Company Name:   		Kennametal Stellite LP

						Source Address:   		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

						Permit Number:   		039-47548-00078

						Reviewer:   		Sarah Germann

		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit HAPs (ton/year)

		Pollutant/Emission Unit		Spray Booth A*		Dust Collectors		Emergency Generator		Casting process heating torch		Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners)		Sintering Station furnace		Total Each HAP

		Acetaldehyde		--		--		2.99E-04		--		--		--		2.99E-04

		Acrolein		--		--		3.61E-05		--		--		--		3.61E-05

		Benzene		--		--		3.64E-04		2.93E-06		2.25E-06		5.41E-05		4.23E-04

		1,3-Butadiene		--		--		1.53E-05		--		--		--		1.53E-05

		Cadmium		--		--		--		1.54E-06		1.18E-06		2.83E-05		3.11E-05

		Chromium		5.40		2.07		--		0.0000019538		1.50E-06		3.61E-05		7.47E+00

		Cobalt		0.77		4.25		--		--		--		--		5.02E+00

		Dichlorobenzene		--		--		--		1.67E-06		1.29E-06		3.09E-05		3.39E-05

		Formaldehyde		--		--		4.60E-04		1.05E-04		8.05E-05		1.93E-03		2.58E-03

		Hexane		--		--		--		2.51E-03		1.93E-03		4.64E-02		5.08E-02

		Lead		--		--		--		6.98E-07		5.37E-07		1.29E-05		1.41E-05

		Manganese		--		--		--		5.30E-07		4.08E-07		9.79E-06		1.07E-05

		Nickel		1.53		2.26		--		0.0000029307		2.25E-06		5.41E-05		3.80E+00

		Toluene		--		--		1.60E-04		4.75E-06		3.65E-06		8.76E-05		2.56E-04

		Xylene		--		--		1.11E-04		--		--		--		1.11E-04

		Worst Case Single HAP (Chromium)														7.47

		Totals		6.93		8.59		1.45E-03		2.63E-03		2.03E-03		4.86E-02		15.57



		Note:

		*Combined HAP total for the spray booth is based on the alloy with the highest 

		HAP content, so combined HAP entry is not the sum of the rows above.
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Mod Sum 47548

		Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

		Modification



										Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

										Source Address:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

										Permit Number:  		039-47548-00078

										Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann





		Uncontrolled Potential to Emit of New and Modified Units (tons/year)

		Emission Unit				PM		PM10		PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Combined HAPs		Single HAP (Cobalt)

		New Units

		Casting process heating torch				2.65E-03		0.01		0.01		8.37E-04		0.14		0.01		0.12		2.63E-03		2.51E-03		Hexane

		Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners)				2.04E-03		0.01		0.01		6.44E-04		0.11		0.01		0.09		2.03E-03		1.93E-03		Hexane

		Sintering Station furnace				0.05		0.20		0.20		0.02		2.58		0.14		2.16		4.86E-02		4.64E-02		Hexane

		Linishing Line (Dust Collector DC12)				5.48		0.55		0.55		-		-		-		-		3.96		1.96		Cobalt

		PTE of New Units				5.53		0.76		0.76		0.02		2.82		0.16		2.37		4.02		1.96		Cobalt

		Total PTE Increase (tons/year):  				5.53		0.76		0.76		0.02		2.82		0.16		2.37		4.02		1.96		Cobalt



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
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Dust Collectors

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

		6a. Throughput based on 8760 hrs/year at maximum of 50 lbs/hr. Typical usage is approximately 15 lbs/hr.

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

		D12		Linishing Line6a		5.48		17%		9.55E-01		19%		1.05E+00		36%		1.96E+00

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

		326 IAC 6-3-2 Evaluations

		Emission Unit		Process Weight Rate (tons/hr)		PM Allowable Emission Rate (lbs/hr)		PM Potential to Emit (tons/yr)		Control Required to Meet Limit?

		Linishing Line		0.03		0.35		5.48		Yes
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
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Cast Pross Heating Torch

										Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

										Natural Gas Combustion ( ≤ 100 MMBtu/hr)

										Rod/Wire Casting Process Heating Torch 



								Company Name:  		Kennametal Stellite LP

								Source Address:  		1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

								Permit Number:  		039-47548-00078

								Reviewer:  		Sarah Germann

								HHV

				Heat Input Capacity				mmBtu				Potential Throughput

				MMBtu/hr				mmscf				MMCF/yr

				0.325				1020				2.8



														Pollutant

		 		 				PM*		PM10*		direct PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO

		Emission Factor in lb/MMCF						1.9		7.6		7.6		0.6		100		5.5		84

																**see below

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						2.65E-03		0.01		0.01		8.37E-04		0.14		0.01		0.12

		*PM emission factor is filterable PM only.  PM10 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM10 combined.

		  PM2.5 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM2.5 combined.

		**Emission Factors for NOx:  Uncontrolled = 100, Low NOx Burner = 50, Low NOx Burners/Flue gas recirculation = 32



		Methodology

		All emission factors are based on normal firing.

		MMBtu = 1,000,000 Btu; MMCF = 1,000,000 Cubic Feet of Gas

		Emission Factors are from AP 42, Chapter 1.4, Tables 1.4-1, 1.4-2, 1.4-3, SCC #1-02-006-02, 1-01-006-02, 1-03-006-02, and 1-03-006-03

		Potential Throughput (MMCF) = Heat Input Capacity (MMBtu/hr) x 8,760 hrs/yr x 1 MMCF/1,020 MMBtu

		Potential Emission (tons/yr) = Potential Throughput (MMCF/yr) x Emission Factor (lb/MMCF)/2,000 lb/ton



		Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

								HAPs - Organics

		 		 				Benzene		Dichlorobenzene		Formaldehyde		Hexane		Toluene

		Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						2.1E-03		1.2E-03		7.5E-02		1.8E+00		3.4E-03

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						2.9E-06		1.7E-06		1.0E-04		2.5E-03		4.7E-06

								HAPs - Metals

		 		 				Lead		Cadmium		Chromium		Manganese		Nickel

		Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						5.0E-04		1.1E-03		1.4E-03		3.8E-04		2.1E-03

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						7.0E-07		1.5E-06		2.0E-06		5.3E-07		2.9E-06



														Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  		2.6E-03

		Methodology												Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  		2.5E-03		Hexane

		Methodology is the same as above.

		The five highest organic and metal HAPs emission factors are provided above. 

		Additional HAPs emission factors are available in AP-42, Chapter 1.4.

		Note:

		Welding is not taking place in this process. 

		The heating torch is used to keep the ladle of the casting process hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying to the surface of the ladle.

		There is no melting of metal, so there are not any process emissions for this unit.
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Air Melt Aut Tower Burners

										Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

										Natural Gas Combustion ( ≤ 100 MMBtu/hr)

										Six (6) Thermal Jets/Air Melt Automization Tower Burners for Heating Tundish 



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

				0.25				1020				2.1



														Pollutant

		 		 				PM*		PM10*		direct PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO

		Emission Factor in lb/MMCF						1.9		7.6		7.6		0.6		100		5.5		84

																**see below

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						2.04E-03		0.01		0.01		6.44E-04		0.11		0.01		0.09

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

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						2.3E-06		1.3E-06		8.1E-05		1.9E-03		3.7E-06

								HAPs - Metals

		 		 				Lead		Cadmium		Chromium		Manganese		Nickel

		Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						5.0E-04		1.1E-03		1.4E-03		3.8E-04		2.1E-03

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						5.4E-07		1.2E-06		1.5E-06		4.1E-07		2.3E-06



														Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  		2.0E-03

		Methodology												Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  		1.9E-03		Hexane

		Methodology is the same as above.

		The five highest organic and metal HAPs emission factors are provided above. 

		Additional HAPs emission factors are available in AP-42, Chapter 1.4.

		Note:

		The six burners are used to heat up the tundish and keep molten alloy which is poured into it from solidifying on the surface.

		The molten alloy then enters the tower where it is converted to a powder for additional processing.

		These burners are not actually heating the metal, so there are not any process emissions for these units.
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Sintering Station Furnace

										Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

										Natural Gas Combustion ( ≤ 100 MMBtu/hr)

										Furnace at the Sintering station to heat Refractory of Caster



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

				6.00				1020				51.5



														Pollutant

		 		 				PM*		PM10*		direct PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO

		Emission Factor in lb/MMCF						1.9		7.6		7.6		0.6		100		5.5		84

																**see below

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						0.05		0.20		0.20		0.02		2.58		0.14		2.16

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

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						5.4E-05		3.1E-05		1.9E-03		4.6E-02		8.8E-05

								HAPs - Metals

		 		 				Lead		Cadmium		Chromium		Manganese		Nickel

		Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						5.0E-04		1.1E-03		1.4E-03		3.8E-04		2.1E-03

		Potential Emission in tons/yr						1.3E-05		2.8E-05		3.6E-05		9.8E-06		5.4E-05



														Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  		4.9E-02

		Methodology												Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  		4.6E-02		Hexane

		Methodology is the same as above.

		The five highest organic and metal HAPs emission factors are provided above. 

		Additional HAPs emission factors are available in AP-42, Chapter 1.4.

		Note:

		The sintering station heats/cures the refractory of a caster used in the production of retal rods from molten alloy.

		The torch at the sintering station does not heat metal. It heats the refractory of the caster to remove residual moisture prior to the addision of molten metal.

		This furnace unit does not directly heat metal, so there are not any process emissions for this unit.
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Goshen, Indiana		Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078

Permit Reviewer:  Sarah Germann











Randy Porter

Kennametal Stellite LP

1201 Eisenhower Drive North

Goshen, IN 46526



Re:	039-47548-00078

Revision to 

Registration No. R039-14366-00078



Dear Randy Porter: 



Kennametal Stellite LP was issued a Registration No. R039-14366-00078 on August 7, 2001 for a stationary metal powder manufacturing facility located at 1201 Eisenhower Dr. N, Goshen, IN 46526.  On February 20, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from the source requesting to add six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, one (1) rod/wire casting process heating torch, one (1) natural gas furnace for sintering, and one (1) dust collector on the Linishing line exhausting to Baghouse DC5.  Pursuant to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(g), a Registration Revision is hereby approved as described in the attached Technical Support Document.



The source shall continue to operate according to 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations).  All other conditions of the registration shall remain unchanged and in effect.  Please find attached the entire registration as revised.  The registration references the below listed attachment(s).  Since these attachments have been provided in previously issued approvals for this source, IDEM OAQ has not included a copy of these attachments with this revision:



Attachment A:  40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, NSPS Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines

Attachment B:  40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, NESHAP Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines



Previously issued approvals for this source containing these attachments are available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.  



Previously issued approvals for this source are also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet (VFC).  To access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will then have the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria.



Federal rules under Title 40 of United States Code of Federal Regulations may also be found on the U.S. Government Printing Office's Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR) website, located on the Internet at: http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40tab_02.tpl.



A copy of the registration is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.  A copy of the application and registration is also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet (VFC).  To access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will then have the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria.  For additional information about air permits and how the public and interested parties can participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on the Internet at:  https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/.



This decision is subject to the Indiana Administrative Orders and Procedures Act - IC 4-21.5-3-5.  



If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Sarah Germann, Indiana Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 234-6555 or (800) 451-6027, and ask for Sarah Germann or (317) 234-6555.



Sincerely,







Heath Hartley, Section Chief

Permits Branch

Office of Air Quality



Attachment(s):  Revised Registration and Technical Support Document



cc:	File - Elkhart County

Elkhart County Health Department

Compliance and Enforcement Branch

IDEM Northern Regional Office



		An Equal Opportunity Employer
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Goshen, Indiana	Amended by:  Sarah Germann	Registration No. 039-14366-00078

Permit Reviewer:  ERG/RB



REGISTRATION

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY


[bookmark: OLE_LINK2]Kennametal Stellite LP 
1201 Eisenhower Dr N

Goshen, Indiana  46526





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

Notice-Only Change No. 039-29603-00078, issued on December 29, 2010

Notice-Only Change No. 039-31339-00078, issued on February 8, 2012

Administrative Amendment No. 039-33899-00078, issued on February 4, 2014

Administrative Amendment No.039-35083-00078, issued on January 9, 2015

Administrative Amendment No.039-36424-00078, issued on November 23, 2015

Administrative Amendment No. 039-39438-00078, issued on January 30, 2018

Administrative Amendment No. 039-40090-00078, issued on July 17, 2018

Administrative Amendment No.039-46685-00078, issued on August 9, 2023

		

Registration Revision No.039-47548-00078



		

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



[bookmark: _Hlk161914228]A.2	Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary

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







[bookmark: _Hlk162342803](b)	Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas-fired burners, permitted in 2024 with a maximum capacity of 0.25 MMBTU/hr, each, using no controls. The burners are used to heat up the tundish and keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from solidifying on the surface of the tundish.



(c) 	One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC4.



(d) 	One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC5.



(e)	One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for modification, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC7.



(f)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume hood/Baghouse DC9.



[bookmark: _Hlk162342959](g)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas-fired heating torch, installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 0.325 MMBTU/hr, using no controls. This heating torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying to the surface of the ladle.



(h)	One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, using a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24 pounds of parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC8. This booth is located in the Research and Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and testing for welding torches.



(i)	One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(j)	Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in 2018, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



[bookmark: _Hlk162347273](k)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



(l)	One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with heat input capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and exhausting to Stk1.



Under 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, this unit is considered an affected facility.

Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, this unit is considered an affected new facility.



[bookmark: _Hlk162343210](m)	One (1) Secondary Metal Production natural gas fired furnace at the sintering station, installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 MMBTU/hr, using no controls, and venting to DC-10. This unit heats the refractory of the caster to remove residual moisture prior to the addition of molten metal to the process.








SECTION B	GENERAL CONDITIONS



B.1	Definitions [326 IAC 2-1.1-1]

Terms in this registration shall have the definition assigned to such terms in the referenced regulation.  In the absence of definitions in the referenced regulation, the applicable definitions found in the statutes or regulations (IC 13-11, 326 IAC 1-2 and 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) shall prevail.



[bookmark: _Hlk161914484]B.2	Effective Date of Registration [IC 13-15-5-3]

[bookmark: _Hlk161914539]Pursuant to IC 13-15-5-3, this registration R039-14366-00078 is effective immediately, unless a petition for stay of effectiveness is filed and granted according to IC 13-15-6-3, and may be revoked or modified in accordance with the provisions of IC 13-15-7-1.



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



[bookmark: _Hlk161914597]
SECTION D.1	EMISSION UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS



		[bookmark: _Hlk162530581]

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







(b) 	One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC4.



(c) 	One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC5.



(d)	One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for modification, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC7.



(e)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume hood/Baghouse DC9.



(f)	One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, using a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24 pounds of parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse.DC8. This booth is located in the Research and Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and testing for welding torches.



(g)	One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building.



(h)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



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



		Linishing Line

		50

		0.35







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

In order to assure compliance with Condition D.1.1(b), the baghouses shall be in operation and control emissions from the associated processes at all times when these processes are in operation.



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
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Goshen, Indiana		TSD for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078

Permit Reviewer: Sarah Germann		



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Office of Air Quality



Technical Support Document (TSD) for a Registration Revision



Source Description and Location

Source Name:	Kennametal Stellite LP

Source Location: 	1201 Eisenhower Dr. N, Goshen, IN 46526

County:	Elkhart (Elkhart Township) 

SIC Code:	3369 (Nonferrous Foundries, Except Aluminum and Copper)

Registration No.:	R 039-14366-00078

Registration Issuance Date:	August 7, 2001

Registration Revision No.:	039-47548-00078

Permit Reviewer:	Sarah Germann



On February 20, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from Kennametal Stellite LP related to changes at an existing stationary metal powder manufacturing facility.



Existing Approvals

The source was issued Registration No. 039-14366-00078 on August 7, 2001.  The source has since received the following approvals:



		Permit Type

		Permit Number

		Issuance Date



		Registration Revision

		039-15682-00078

		February 3, 2003



		[bookmark: _Hlk137634189]Registration NOC

		039-23709-00078

		October 24, 2006



		Registration NOC

		039-25404-00078

		October 30, 2007



		Registration NOC

		039-29603-00078

		December 29, 2010



		Registration NOC

		039-31339-00078

		February 8, 2012



		Registration AA

		039-33899-00078

		February 4, 2014



		Registration AA

		039-35083-00078

		January 9, 2015



		Registration AA

		039-36424-00078

		November 23, 2015



		Registration AA

		039-39438-00078

		January 30, 2018



		Registration AA

		039-40090-00078

		July 17, 2018



		Registration AA

		039-46685-00078

		August 9, 2023







County Attainment Status

The source is located in Elkhart County.



[bookmark: _Hlk138321929]Pursuant to amendments to Indiana Code IC 13-17-3-14, effective July 1, 2023, a federal regulation that classifies or amends a designation of attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable for any area in Indiana under the federal Clean Air Act is effective and enforceable in Indiana on the effective date of the federal regulation.



		[bookmark: elkhart]Pollutant

		Designation



		SO2

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 9, 2018, for the 2010 primary 1-hour SO2 standard. Better than national secondary standards effective March 3, 1978.



		CO

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective November 15, 1990.



		O3

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective August 3, 2018, for the 2015 8-hour ozone standard.



		PM2.5

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 15, 2015, for the 2012 annual PM2.5 standard.



		PM2.5

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 13, 2009, for the 2006 24-hour PM2.5 standard.



		PM10

		Unclassifiable effective November 15, 1990.



		NO2

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective January 29, 2012, for the 2010 NO2 standard.



		Pb

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 31, 2011, for the 2008 lead standard.







(a)	Ozone Standards

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) and Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) are regulated under the Clean Air Act (CAA) for the purposes of attaining and maintaining the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions are considered when evaluating the rule applicability relating to ozone.  Elkhart County has been designated as attainment or unclassifiable for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



(b)	PM2.5

Elkhart County has been classified as attainment for PM2.5.  Therefore, direct PM2.5, SO2, and NOx emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



(c)	Other Criteria Pollutants

Elkhart County has been classified as attainment or unclassifiable in Indiana for all the other criteria pollutants.  Therefore, these emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



Fugitive Emissions

The fugitive emissions of regulated air pollutants and hazardous air pollutants (HAP) are counted toward the determination of Registration (326 IAC 2-5.1-5) applicability and source status under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act (CAA).



Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

On June 23, 2014, in the case of Utility Air Regulatory Group v. EPA, cause no. 12-1146, (available at http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/13pdf/12-1146_4g18.pdf) the United States Supreme Court ruled that the U.S. EPA does not have the authority to treat greenhouse gases (GHGs) as an air pollutant for the purpose of determining operating permit applicability or PSD Major source status.  On July 24, 2014, the U.S. EPA issued a memorandum to the Regional Administrators outlining next steps in permitting decisions in light of the Supreme Court’s decision.  U.S. EPA’s guidance states that U.S. EPA will no longer require PSD or Title V permits for sources “previously classified as ‘Major’ based solely on greenhouse gas emissions.”



The Indiana Environmental Rules Board adopted the GHG regulations required by U.S. EPA at 326 IAC 2-2-1(zz), pursuant to Ind. Code § 13-14-9-8(h) (Section 8 rulemaking).  A rule, or part of a rule, adopted under Section 8 is automatically invalidated when the corresponding federal rule, or part of the rule, is invalidated.  Due to the United States Supreme Court Ruling, IDEM, OAQ cannot consider GHG emissions to determine operating permit applicability or PSD applicability to a source or modification.



Source Status - Existing Source

This table reflects the unrestricted potential emissions of the source prior to the proposed revision.  If the control equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after consideration of the integral control device.



		

		Unrestricted Source-Wide Emissions Prior to Revision (tons/year)



		

		PM1

		PM101

		PM2.51, 2

		SO2

		NOX

		VOC

		CO

		Single HAP3

		Total

HAPs



		Total PTE of Entire Source Including Source-Wide Fugitives

		14.18

		8.43

		8.43

		0.11

		1.73

		0.14

		0.37

		6.51

		11.55



		Exemptions Levels

		< 5

		< 5

		< 5

		< 10

		< 10

		< 10

		< 25

		< 10

		< 25



		Registration Levels

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 100

		< 10

		< 25



		1Under the Part 70 Permit program (40 CFR 70), PM10 and PM2.5, not particulate matter (PM), are each considered as a "regulated air pollutant.”

2PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5.

3Single highest source-wide HAP.







These emissions are based on the TSD of Registration Administrative Amendment No. 039-46685-00078, issued on August 9, 2023.



Description of Proposed Revision

The Office of Air Quality (OAQ) has reviewed an application, submitted by Kennametal Stellite LP on February 20, 2024, relating to the addition of six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, one (1) rod/wire casting process heating torch, one (1) natural gas furnace for sintering, and one (1) dust collector on the Linishing line exhausting to Baghouse DC5.  



The following is a list of the new and modified emission units and pollution control device(s):



[bookmark: _Hlk161914052](a)	Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas-fired burners, permitted in 2024 with a maximum capacity of 0.25 MMBTU/hr, each, using no controls. The burners are used to heat up the tundish and keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from solidifying on the surface of the tundish.



[bookmark: _Hlk161914070](b)	One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas-fired heating torch, installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 0.325 MMBTU/hr, using no controls. This heating torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying to the surface of the ladle.

[bookmark: _Hlk161914151]

[bookmark: _Hlk161914170](c)	One (1) Secondary Metal Production natural gas fired furnace at the sintering station, installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 MMBTU/hr, using no controls, and venting to DC-10. This unit heats the refractory of the caster to remove residual moisture prior to the addition of molten metal to the process.



The following emission units were constructed and/or operated without a registration revision:



(a)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



Enforcement Issues

IDEM is aware that equipment has been constructed and operated prior to receipt of a registration.  IDEM is reviewing this matter and will take the appropriate action.  This proposed approval is intended to satisfy the requirements of the registration rules.



Emission Calculations

See Appendix A of this Technical Support Document for detailed emission calculations.



Permit Level Determination – Registration Revision

The following table is used to determine the appropriate revision level under 326 IAC 2-5.5-6.  This table reflects the PTE before controls of the proposed revision.  If the control equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after consideration of the integral control device.



		

		PTE Before Controls of the New Emission Units (ton/year)



		Process / 
Emission Unit

		PM

		PM10

		PM2.51

		SO2

		NOX

		VOC

		CO

		Single HAP2

		Total

HAPs



		Casting process heating torch

		negl.

		0.01

		0.01

		negl.

		0.14

		0.01

		0.12

		negl.

		negl.



		Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners) 

		negl.

		0.01

		0.01

		negl.

		0.11

		0.01

		0.09

		negl.

		negl.



		Sintering Station furnace

		0.05

		0.20

		0.20

		0.02

		2.58

		0.14

		2.16

		negl.

		negl.



		Linishing Line (Dust Collector DC12)

		5.48

		0.55

		0.055

		-

		-

		-

		-

		1.96

		3.96



		Total PTE Before Controls of the New Emission Units:

		5.53

		0.76

		0.76

		0.02

		2.82

		0.16

		2.37

		1.96 (Cobalt)

		4.02



		1PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5.

2Single highest HAP.







Appendix A of this TSD reflects the detailed potential emissions of the proposed revision.



This Registration is being revised through a Registration Revision pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(g), because the revision involves the construction or modification of emission units not described under 326 IAC 2-1.1-3(e)(1) through 326 IAC 2-1.1-3(e)(31). 



PTE of the Entire Source After Issuance of the Registration Revision

The table below summarizes the after issuance source-wide unrestricted potential to emit.  If the control equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after consideration of the integral control device.



		

		Unrestricted Source-Wide Emissions After Issuance (ton/year) (tons/year)c



		

		PM1

		PM101

		PM2.51, 2

		SO2

		NOX

		VOC

		CO

		Single HAP3

		Total

HAPs



		Total PTE of Entire Source Including Source-Wide Fugitives

		19.71

		9.19

		9.19

		0.13

		4.55

		0.30

		2.74

		7.47

		15.57



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







(a)	This proposed revision will not change the registration status of the source, because the source-wide uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of PM, PM10, PM2.5, SO2, NOx, VOC, and CO will each still be within the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.5-1(b)(1) and the potential to emit of all other regulated air pollutants will each still be less than the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.5-1(b)(1).  Therefore, the source will still be subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations).



(b)	This proposed revision will not change the registration status of the source, because the source-wide uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of any single HAP will still be less than ten (10) tons per year and the uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of a combination of HAPs will still be less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.  Therefore, the source is subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations).  This source is an area source under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act (CAA).



Federal Rule Applicability Determination

Due to this proposed revision, federal rule applicability has been reviewed as follows:



New Source Performance Standards (NSPS):



(a)	There are no New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) (326 IAC 12 and 40 CFR Part 60) included in the registration.



National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP):



(a)	There are no National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) (40 CFR Part 63, 326 IAC 14, and 326 IAC 20) included in the registration.



Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM):



Pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) is not included in the registration, because the unlimited potential to emit of the source is less than the Title V major source thresholds and the source is not required to obtain a Part 70 or Part 71 permit.



State Rule Applicability - Entire Source

Due to this proposed revision, state rule applicability has been reviewed as follows:



326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations)

Registration applicability is discussed under the PTE of the Entire Source After Issuance of the Registration Revision section of this document. 



326 IAC 2-4.1 (Major Sources of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP))

The new and modified emission unit(s) will emit less than ten (10) tons per year for a single HAP and less than twenty-five (25) tons per year for a combination of HAPs.  Therefore, 326 IAC 2-4.1 does not apply.



326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting)

This source is not subject to 326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting), because it is not required to have an operating permit pursuant to 326 IAC 2-7 (Part 70), it is not located in Lake or Porter County, and its potential to emit lead is less than 5 tons per year.  Therefore, this rule does not apply.



326 IAC 5-1 (Opacity Limitations)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 5-1-2 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 5-1-3 (Temporary Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this registrant:



(1)	Opacity shall not exceed an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1) six (6) minute averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4.



(2)	Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen (15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute nonoverlapping integrated averages for a continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period.



326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations), the source shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 6-4.



326 IAC 6-5 (Fugitive Particulate Matter Emission Limitations)

This source is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-5, because the source has potential fugitive particulate emissions of less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.



326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-1(a), this source (located in Elkhart County) is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because it is not located in one of the following counties: Clark, Dearborn, Dubois, Howard, Marion, St. Joseph, Vanderburgh, Vigo or Wayne.



326 IAC 6.8 (Particulate Matter Limitations for Lake County)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.8-1-1(a), this source (located in Elkhart County) is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.8, because it is not located in Lake County.



State Rule Applicability – Individual Facilities

Due to this proposed revision, state rule applicability has been reviewed as follows:



Natural Gas Combustion

	1) Tower burners 

	2) Casting Process heating torch 

	3) Sintering Station furnace



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(14), the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3, since they each emit less than 0.551 pounds of particulate matter per hour.



326 IAC 7-1.1 Sulfur Dioxide Emission Limitations

These emission units are not subject to 326 IAC 326 IAC 7-1.1, because they have a potential to emit sulfur dioxide (SO2) of less than 25 tons per year or 10 pounds per hour.



326 IAC 8-1-6 (VOC Rules: General Reduction Requirements for New Facilities)

Even though, the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action were constructed after January 1, 1980, they are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-1-6, because the unlimited VOC potential emissions are less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.



326 IAC 9-1 (Carbon Monoxide Emission Limits)

The requirements of 326 IAC 9-1 do not apply to the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action, because this source does not operate a catalyst regeneration petroleum cracking system or a petroleum fluid coker, grey iron cupola, blast furnace, basic oxygen steel furnace, or other ferrous metal smelting equipment.



326 IAC 10-3 (Nitrogen Oxide Reduction Program for Specific Source Categories)

The requirements of 326 IAC 10-3 do not apply to the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action, since these unit are not a blast furnace gas-fired boiler, a Portland cement kiln, or a facility specifically listed under 326 IAC 10-3-1(a)(2).



Linishing Line



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes) 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(a), the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2 are applicable to the Linishing Line, since it is a manufacturing process not exempted from this rule under 326 IAC 6-3-1(b) and is not subject to a particulate matter limitation that is as stringent as or more stringent than the particulate limitation established in this rule as specified in 326 IAC 6-3-1(c).  



Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2, the particulate matter (PM) from the linishing line shall not exceed 0.346 pounds per hour when operating at a process weight rate of 0.025 tons per hour.  The pound per hour limitation was calculated with the following equation:



Interpolation of the data for the process weight rate up to sixty thousand (60,000) pounds per hour shall be accomplished by use of the equation:



E = 4.10 P 0.67		where		E = rate of emission in pounds per hour and

	P = process weight rate in tons per hour



The control equipment shall be in operation at all times the linishing line is in operation, in order to comply with this limit.



Proposed Changes

The following changes listed below are due to the proposed revision.  Deleted language appears as strikethrough text and new language appears as bold text:



(1)	The addition of six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, used to heat the tundish and keep molten alloy from solidifying.



(2)	The addition of one (1) rod/wire casting process heating torch, used to keep the ladle in the casting process hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying.



(3)	The addition of a furnace at the sintering station, used to heat the refractory of the caster, to remove residual moisture prior to introducing molten metal in the process.



(4) 	The addition of dust collector DC12 at the linishing equipment line, rerouting discharge from within the building to existing baghouse DC5.



Additional Changes



Upon further review, IDEM, OAQ has decided to make the following changes to the registration.  Deleted language appears as strikethrough text and new language appears as bold text:



(1)	Minor language and title updates in the B and D Sections.

	

***

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

Pursuant to IC 13-15-5-3, this registration R039-14366-00078 is effective immediately, unless a petition for stay of effectiveness is filed and granted according to IC 13-15-6-3, and may be revoked or modified in accordance with the provisions of IC 13-15-7-1.

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

Conclusion and Recommendation

Unless otherwise stated, information used in this review was derived from the application and additional information submitted by the applicant.  An application for the purposes of this review was received on February 20, 2024. 



The construction and operation of this proposed revision shall be subject to the conditions of the attached Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078. The staff recommends to the Commissioner that the Registration Revision be approved.



IDEM Contact

(a)	If you have any questions regarding this permit, please contact Sarah Germann, Indiana Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 234-6555 or (800) 451-6027, and ask for Sarah Germann or (317) 234-6555.



(b)	A copy of the findings is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/



[bookmark: _Hlk69120677](c) 	For additional information about air permits and how the public and interested parties can participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on the Internet at:  https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/.
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Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations
PTE Summary

Company Name:  Kennametal Stellite LP
Address City IN Zip:  1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526

Administrative Amendment Number:  039-47548-00078
Reviewer:  Sarah Germann

Uncontrolled Potential to Emit (tons/yr)
Emission Unit PM PM10 PM2.5 * SO2 NOx VOC CO Single Highest HAP

(Chromium)
Powder coating Booth A 7.67 7.67 7.67 - - - - 5.40
Dust Collectors 11.87 1.19 1.19 - - - - 2.07
Emergency Generator 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.11 1.73 0.14 0.37 -
Casting process heating torch 2.65E-03 0.01 0.01 8.37E-04 0.14 0.01 0.12 1.95E-06
Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners) 2.04E-03 0.01 0.01 6.44E-04 0.11 0.01 0.09 1.50E-06
Sintering Station funace 0.05 0.20 0.20 0.02 2.58 0.14 2.16 3.61E-05

Total 19.71 9.19 9.19 0.13 4.55 0.30 2.74 7.47
* PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5
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Appendix A: Emission Calculations
PTE Summary

Company Name:   Kennametal Stellite LP
Source Address:   1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526
Permit Number:   039-47548-00078

Reviewer:   Sarah Germann

Pollutant/Emission 
Unit

Spray 
Booth A*

Dust 
Collectors

Emergency 
Generator

Casting 
process 
heating torch

Six (6) Thermal 
Jets (tower 
burners)

Sintering 
Station 
furnace

Total 
Each 
HAP

Acetaldehyde -- -- 2.99E-04 -- -- -- 2.99E-04
Acrolein -- -- 3.61E-05 -- -- -- 3.61E-05
Benzene -- -- 3.64E-04 2.93E-06 2.25E-06 5.41E-05 4.23E-04

1,3-Butadiene -- -- 1.53E-05 -- -- -- 1.53E-05
Cadmium -- -- -- 1.54E-06 1.18E-06 2.83E-05 3.11E-05
Chromium 5.40 2.07 -- 1.95382E-06 1.50E-06 3.61E-05 7.47E+00

Cobalt 0.77 4.25 -- -- -- -- 5.02E+00
Dichlorobenzene -- -- -- 1.67E-06 1.29E-06 3.09E-05 3.39E-05
Formaldehyde -- -- 4.60E-04 1.05E-04 8.05E-05 1.93E-03 2.58E-03

Hexane -- -- -- 2.51E-03 1.93E-03 4.64E-02 5.08E-02
Lead -- -- -- 6.98E-07 5.37E-07 1.29E-05 1.41E-05

Manganese -- -- -- 5.30E-07 4.08E-07 9.79E-06 1.07E-05
Nickel 1.53 2.26 -- 2.93074E-06 2.25E-06 5.41E-05 3.80E+00

Toluene -- -- 1.60E-04 4.75E-06 3.65E-06 8.76E-05 2.56E-04
Xylene -- -- 1.11E-04 -- -- -- 1.11E-04

7.47
Totals 6.93 8.59 1.45E-03 2.63E-03 2.03E-03 4.86E-02 15.57

Note:
*Combined HAP total for the spray booth is based on the alloy with the highest 
HAP content, so combined HAP entry is not the sum of the rows above.

Uncontrolled Potential to Emit HAPs (ton/year)

Worst Case Single HAP (Chromium)
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Company Name:  Kennametal Stellite LP
Source Address:  1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, IN 46526
Permit Number:  039-47548-00078

Reviewer:  Sarah Germann

PM PM10 PM2.5* SO2 NOx VOC CO Combined 
HAPs

Single HAP 
(Cobalt)

2.65E-03 0.01 0.01 8.37E-04 0.14 0.01 0.12 2.63E-03 2.51E-03 Hexane
2.04E-03 0.01 0.01 6.44E-04 0.11 0.01 0.09 2.03E-03 1.93E-03 Hexane

0.05 0.20 0.20 0.02 2.58 0.14 2.16 4.86E-02 4.64E-02 Hexane
5.48 0.55 0.55 - - - - 3.96 1.96 Cobalt
5.53 0.76 0.76 0.02 2.82 0.16 2.37 4.02 1.96 Cobalt
5.53 0.76 0.76 0.02 2.82 0.16 2.37 4.02 1.96 Cobalt

*PM 2.5  listed is direct PM 2.5

Casting process heating torch

Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations
Modification

Uncontrolled Potential to Emit of New and Modified Units (tons/year)

Emission Unit

New Units

Total PTE Increase (tons/year):  

Six (6) Thermal Jets (tower burners)
Sintering Station furnace

PTE of New Units
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

 

Unit ID Process
Maximum 

Usage 
(lbs/hr)

**Maximum 
Spray Time 

(hrs/yr)

Transfer 
Efficiency

*PM/PM10/PM2
.5 Potential               

(lb/hr)

*PM/PM10/
PM2.5 

Potential      
(ton/yr)

Control 
Eff. %

Controlled 
PM/PM10/

PM2.5      
(ton/yr)

A R&D 20 1095 30% 14.00 7.67 99% 0.08

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

Booth Coatings*
Maximum 

Usage 
(lbs/hr)

Maximum 
Spray 
Time** 
(hrs/yr)

Transfer 
Efficiency 

(%)

Weight % 
Chromium

 Chromium 
Emissions 

(lb/hr))

 Chromium 
Emissions 
(tons/yr)

Weight % 
Nickel

 Nickel 
Emissions 

(lb/hr))

Nickel 
Emissions 
(tons/yr)

Weight % 
Cobalt

 Cobalt 
Emissions 

(lb/hr))

Cobalt 
Emissions 
(tons/yr)

Combined 
HAPs (lb/hr))

Combined 
HAPs 

(tons/yr)

A Stelcar 
9135 20.0 1,095 30% 70.4% 9.86 5.40 20.0% 2.80 1.53 0.0% 0.00 0.00 12.66 6.93

A Stelcar 
9120 20.0 1,095 30% 4.0% 0.56 0.31 0.0% 0.00 0.00 10.0% 1.40 0.77 1.96 1.07

Booth A worst case before controls*** 9.86 5.40 2.80 1.53 1.40 0.77 12.66 6.93

Total after controls control efficiency 99% 0.10 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.13 0.07

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

Before Controls After Controls
Emission 
Unit ID

Unit ID/Control Device Actual 
Quantity of 

Dust 

Control 
Efficiency

PM Emissions PM10 
Emissions2

PM2.5 
Emissions2

PM Emissions PM10 
Emissions

PM2.5 
Emissions

lb/hr (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
DC1 Air Melt Tower 0.247 99.90% 1.08 0.11 0.11 1.08E-03 1.08E-04 1.08E-04

DC2-1 Fume Hood3,6 0.195 99.90% 0.85 0.09 0.09 8.53E-04 8.53E-05 8.53E-05
DC3 Air Melt Tower4 0.247 99.90% 1.08 0.11 0.11 1.08E-03 1.08E-04 1.08E-04
DC4 Cobalt Classifying 0.024 99.90% 0.11 0.01 0.01 1.05E-04 1.05E-05 1.05E-05
DC5 Iron/Nickel Classifying 0.549 99.90% 2.41 0.24 0.24 2.41E-03 2.41E-04 2.41E-04
DC7 Castable Rework5 0.123 99.90% 0.54 0.05 0.05 5.39E-04 5.39E-05 5.39E-05
DC9 Rod/Wire Casting5 0.073 99.90% 0.32 0.03 0.03 3.20E-04 3.20E-05 3.20E-05
DC12 Linishing Line6a 1.250 99.90% 5.48 0.55 0.55 5.48E-03 5.48E-04 5.48E-04

Total PTE 11.87 1.19 1.19 1.19E-02 1.19E-03 1.19E-03

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

Unit ID/Control Device PM Emissions 
before 

Controls8

Chromium 
content

Chromium 
emissions

Nickel content Nickel 
emissions

Cobalt content Cobalt 
emissions

(tons/yr) (wt %) (tons/yr) (wt %) (tons/yr) (wt %) (tons/yr)
DC1 Air Melt Tower 1.08 17% 0.19 19% 0.21 36% 0.39

DC2-1 Fume Hood 0.85 17% 1.49E-01 19% 1.63E-01 36% 3.06E-01
DC3 Air Melt Tower 1.08 17% 0.19 19% 0.21 36% 0.39
DC4 Cobalt Classifying 0.11 17% 1.83E-02 19% 2.01E-02 36% 3.77E-02
DC5 Iron.Nickel Classifying 2.41 17% 0.42 19% 0.46 36% 8.62E-01
DC7 Castable Rework9 0.54 17% 9.40E-02 19% 1.03E-01 36% 1.93E-01
DC9 Rod/Wire Casting 0.32 17% 5.58E-02 19% 6.10E-02 36% 1.15E-01
D12 Linishing Line6a 5.48 17% 9.55E-01 19% 1.05E+00 36% 1.96E+00

worst-case single HAP 2.07 2.26 4.25
worst case combined HAPs 8.59

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

Unit ID/Control Device Control 
Efficiency

Chromium 
emissions

Nickel 
emissions

Cobalt 
emissions

(tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
DC1 Air Melt Tower 99.9% 1.89E-04 2.07E-04 3.88E-04

DC2-1 Fume Hood 99.9% 1.49E-04 1.63E-04 3.06E-04
DC3 Air Melt Tower 99.9% 1.89E-04 2.07E-04 3.88E-04
DC4 Cobalt Classifying 99.9% 1.83E-05 2.01E-05 3.77E-05
DC5 Iron.Nickel Classifying 99.9% 4.20E-04 4.59E-04 8.62E-04
DC7 Castable Rework 99.9% 9.40E-05 1.03E-04 1.93E-04
DC9 Rod/Wire Casting 99.9% 5.58E-05 6.10E-05 1.15E-04
DC12 Linishing Line6a 99.9% 9.55E-04 1.05E-03 1.96E-03

worst-case single HAP 2.07E-03 2.26E-03 4.25E-03
worst case combined HAPs 8.59E-03

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

Process Weight Rate 
(tons/hr)

PM Allowable 
Emission Rate 

(lbs/hr)

PM Potential to 
Emit (tons/yr)

Control 
Required to 
Meet Limit?

Linishing 
Line 0.03 0.35 5.48 Yes
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

Output Horsepower Rating (hp)  223.0
Maximum Hours Operated per Year  500

Potential Throughput (hp-hr/yr)  111,500

Pollutant
PM* PM10* direct PM2.5* SO2 NOx VOC CO

Emission Factor in lb/hp-hr 0.0022 0.0022 0.0022 0.00205 0.0310 0.0025 0.00668
Potential Emission in tons/yr 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.11 1.73 0.14 0.37

Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)
Pollutant

Total PAH
Benzene Toluene Xylene 1,3-Butadiene Formaldehyde Acetaldehyde Acrolein HAPs***

Emission Factor in lb/hp-hr**** 6.53E-06 2.86E-06 2.00E-06 2.74E-07 8.26E-06 5.37E-06 6.48E-07 1.18E-06
Potential Emission in tons/yr 3.64E-04 1.60E-04 1.11E-04 1.53E-05 4.60E-04 2.99E-04 3.61E-05 6.56E-05
***PAH = Polyaromatic Hydrocarbon  (PAHs are considered HAPs, since they are considered Polycyclic Organic Matter)

Potential Emission of Total HAPs (tons/yr)  1.51E-03

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

*PM and PM2.5 emission factors are assumed to be equivalent to PM10 emission factors.  No information was given regarding which method 
was used to determine the factor or the fraction of PM10 which is condensable.

****Emission factors in lb/hp-hr were calculated using emission factors in lb/MMBtu and a brake specific fuel 
consumption of 7,000 Btu / hp-hr (AP-42 Table 3.3-1).



Page 8 of 10, TSD App. A 

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
Heat Input Capacity mmBtu Potential Throughput

MMBtu/hr mmscf MMCF/yr
0.325 1020 2.8

Pollutant
  PM* PM10* direct PM2.5* SO2 NOx VOC CO
Emission Factor in lb/MMCF 1.9 7.6 7.6 0.6 100 5.5 84

**see below
Potential Emission in tons/yr 2.65E-03 0.01 0.01 8.37E-04 0.14 0.01 0.12
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

  Benzene Dichlorobenzene Formaldehyde Hexane Toluene
Emission Factor in lb/MMcf 2.1E-03 1.2E-03 7.5E-02 1.8E+00 3.4E-03
Potential Emission in tons/yr 2.9E-06 1.7E-06 1.0E-04 2.5E-03 4.7E-06

  Lead Cadmium Chromium Manganese Nickel
Emission Factor in lb/MMcf 5.0E-04 1.1E-03 1.4E-03 3.8E-04 2.1E-03
Potential Emission in tons/yr 7.0E-07 1.5E-06 2.0E-06 5.3E-07 2.9E-06

Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  2.6E-03
Methodology Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  2.5E-03 Hexane
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
0.25 1020 2.1

Pollutant
  PM* PM10* direct PM2.5* SO2 NOx VOC CO
Emission Factor in lb/MMCF 1.9 7.6 7.6 0.6 100 5.5 84

**see below
Potential Emission in tons/yr 2.04E-03 0.01 0.01 6.44E-04 0.11 0.01 0.09
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
Potential Emission in tons/yr 2.3E-06 1.3E-06 8.1E-05 1.9E-03 3.7E-06

  Lead Cadmium Chromium Manganese Nickel
Emission Factor in lb/MMcf 5.0E-04 1.1E-03 1.4E-03 3.8E-04 2.1E-03
Potential Emission in tons/yr 5.4E-07 1.2E-06 1.5E-06 4.1E-07 2.3E-06

Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  2.0E-03
Methodology Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  1.9E-03 Hexane
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
6.00 1020 51.5

Pollutant
  PM* PM10* direct PM2.5* SO2 NOx VOC CO
Emission Factor in lb/MMCF 1.9 7.6 7.6 0.6 100 5.5 84

**see below
Potential Emission in tons/yr 0.05 0.20 0.20 0.02 2.58 0.14 2.16
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
Potential Emission in tons/yr 5.4E-05 3.1E-05 1.9E-03 4.6E-02 8.8E-05

  Lead Cadmium Chromium Manganese Nickel
Emission Factor in lb/MMcf 5.0E-04 1.1E-03 1.4E-03 3.8E-04 2.1E-03
Potential Emission in tons/yr 1.3E-05 2.8E-05 3.6E-05 9.8E-06 5.4E-05

Potential Emission of Combined HAPs (tons/yr)  4.9E-02
Methodology Potential Emission of Highest Single HAP (tons/yr)  4.6E-02 Hexane
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
 

Re: 039-47548-00078 
Revision to  
Registration No. R039-14366-00078 

 
Dear Randy Porter:  
 

Kennametal Stellite LP was issued a Registration No. R039-14366-00078 on August 7, 2001 for a 
stationary metal powder manufacturing facility located at 1201 Eisenhower Dr. N, Goshen, IN 46526.  On 
February 20, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from the source requesting to 
add six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, one (1) rod/wire casting process heating torch, one (1) 
natural gas furnace for sintering, and one (1) dust collector on the Linishing line exhausting to Baghouse 
DC5.  Pursuant to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(g), a Registration Revision is hereby approved as 
described in the attached Technical Support Document. 

 
The source shall continue to operate according to 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations).  All other 

conditions of the registration shall remain unchanged and in effect.  Please find attached the entire 
registration as revised.  The registration references the below listed attachment(s).  Since these 
attachments have been provided in previously issued approvals for this source, IDEM OAQ has not 
included a copy of these attachments with this revision: 

 
Attachment A:  40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, NSPS Stationary Compression Ignition Internal 

Combustion Engines 
Attachment B:  40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, NESHAP Stationary Reciprocating Internal 

Combustion Engines 
 
Previously issued approvals for this source containing these attachments are available on the 

Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.   
 
Previously issued approvals for this source are also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet 

(VFC).  To access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will 
then have the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria. 

 
Federal rules under Title 40 of United States Code of Federal Regulations may also be found on 

the U.S. Government Printing Office's Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR) website, located on 
the Internet at: http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40tab_02.tpl. 

 
A copy of the registration is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.  

A copy of the application and registration is also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet (VFC).  To 
access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will then have 
the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria.  For additional information about air 
permits and how the public and interested parties can participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on 
the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on 
the Internet at:  https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/. 
 

http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/
https://www.in.gov/idem/
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40tab_02.tpl
http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/
https://www.in.gov/idem/
https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/
https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/
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Goshen, Indiana  Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 
Permit Reviewer:  Sarah Germann 
 

This decision is subject to the Indiana Administrative Orders and Procedures Act - IC 4-21.5-3-5.   
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Sarah Germann, Indiana 

Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate 
Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 234-6555 or 
(800) 451-6027, and ask for Sarah Germann or (317) 234-6555. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Heath Hartley, Section Chief 
Permits Branch 
Office of Air Quality 

 
Attachment(s):  Revised Registration and Technical Support Document 
 
cc: File - Elkhart County 

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
 

 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1 (Construction of New Sources: Registrations) and 326 IAC 2-5.5 
(Registrations), (herein known as the Registrant) is hereby authorized to construct and operate subject to 
the conditions contained herein, the source described in Section A (Source Summary) of this registration. 
 
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
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Goshen, Indiana Amended by:  Sarah Germann Registration No. 039-14366-00078 
Permit Reviewer:  ERG/RB 
 
SECTION A SOURCE SUMMARY 
 
This registration is based on information requested by the Indiana Department of Environmental 
Management (IDEM), Office of Air Quality (OAQ).  The information describing the source contained in 
conditions A.1 and A.2 is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.  
However, the Registrant should be aware that a physical change or a change in the method of operation 
that may render this descriptive information obsolete or inaccurate may trigger requirements for the 
Registrant to obtain additional permits pursuant to 326 IAC 2. 
 
A.1 General Information 

The Registrant owns and operates a stationary metal powder manufacturing facility. 
 

Source Address: 1201 Eisenhower Dr N, Goshen, Indiana 46526 
General Source Phone Number: (574) 534-2585 
SIC Code: 3369 (Nonferrous Foundries, Except Aluminum and Copper) 
County Location: Elkhart County 
Source Location Status: Attainment for all criteria pollutants 
Source Status: Registration 

 
A.2 Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary 

This stationary source consists of the following emission units and pollution control devices: 
 

(a) Air Melt Atomization Towers furnaces, each equipped with a product cyclone that is 
considered integral to the process, and with two (2) fume hoods, located over the 
furnaces in the atomization towers, constructed in 2006, controlled by baghouse DC2-1, 
as follows: 

 
Construction year Maximum Capacity 

(pounds/hour) 
Baghouse ID 

1990 800 DC1 
2007 800 DC3 

 
(b) Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas-fired burners, permitted in 2024 with a 

maximum capacity of 0.25 MMBTU/hr, each, using no controls. The burners are used to 
heat up the tundish and keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from solidifying on the 
surface of the tundish. 
 

(c)  One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for 
modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by 
Baghouse DC4. 

 
(d)  One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for 

modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by 
Baghouse DC5. 

 
(e) One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for 

modification, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled 
by Baghouse DC7. 
 

(f) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a 
maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume 
hood/Baghouse DC9. 

 
(g) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas-fired heating torch, installed in 2011, and 

permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 0.325 MMBTU/hr, using no controls. This 
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heating torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying to the 
surface of the ladle. 

 
(h) One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, 

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

 
(i) One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient 

room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building. 
 
(j) Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in 

2018, for ambient room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the 
building. 

 
(k) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a 

maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, 
discharging to Baghouse DC5. 

 
(l) One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with heat 

input capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and 
exhausting to Stk1. 

 
Under 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII, this unit is considered an affected facility. 
Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, this unit is considered an affected new facility. 
 

(m) One (1) Secondary Metal Production natural gas fired furnace at the sintering station, 
installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 MMBTU/hr, 
using no controls, and venting to DC-10. This unit heats the refractory of the caster to 
remove residual moisture prior to the addition of molten metal to the process. 
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SECTION B GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
B.1 Definitions [326 IAC 2-1.1-1] 

Terms in this registration shall have the definition assigned to such terms in the referenced 
regulation.  In the absence of definitions in the referenced regulation, the applicable definitions 
found in the statutes or regulations (IC 13-11, 326 IAC 1-2 and 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) shall prevail. 

 
B.2 Effective Date of Registration [IC 13-15-5-3] 

Pursuant to IC 13-15-5-3, this registration R039-14366-00078 is effective immediately, unless a 
petition for stay of effectiveness is filed and granted according to IC 13-15-6-3, and may be 
revoked or modified in accordance with the provisions of IC 13-15-7-1. 
 

B.3 Registration Revocation [326 IAC 2-1.1-9] 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-1.1-9 (Revocation), this registration to operate may be revoked for any of 
the following causes: 

 
(a) Violation of any conditions of this registration. 

 
(b) Failure to disclose all the relevant facts, or misrepresentation in obtaining this 

registration. 
 

(c) Changes in regulatory requirements that mandate either a temporary or permanent 
reduction of discharge of contaminants.  However, the amendment of appropriate 
sections of this registration shall not require revocation of this registration. 

 
(d) For any cause which establishes in the judgment of IDEM the fact that continuance of this 

registration is not consistent with purposes of this article. 
 
B.4 Prior Permits Superseded [326 IAC 2-1.1-9.5] 

(a) All terms and conditions of permits established prior to Registration No. 039-14366-
00078 and issued pursuant to permitting programs approved into the state 
implementation plan have been either: 

 
(1) incorporated as originally stated, 

 
(2) revised, or 

 
(3) deleted. 

 
(b) All previous registrations and permits are superseded by this registration. 

 
B.5 Annual Notification [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3)] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3): 
 

(a) An annual notification shall be submitted by an authorized individual to the Office of Air 
Quality stating whether or not the source is in operation and in compliance with the terms 
and conditions contained in this registration. 

 
(b) The annual notice shall be submitted in the format attached no later than March 1 of each 

year to: 
 

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
 

(c) The notification shall be considered timely if the date postmarked on the envelope or 
certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or 
before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be 
considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due. 

 
B.6 Source Modification Requirement [326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a)] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a), an application or notification shall be submitted in accordance 
with 326 IAC 2 to the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) if the source proposes to construct new 
emission units, modify existing emission units, or otherwise modify the source. 

 
B.7 Registrations [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i)] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i), this registration does not limit the source's potential to emit. 
 

B.8 Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 1-6-3] 
(a) If required by specific condition(s) in Section D of this registration, the Registrant shall 

prepare and maintain Preventive Maintenance Plans (PMPs) no later than ninety (90) 
days after issuance of this registration or ninety (90) days after initial start-up, whichever 
is later, including the following information on each facility: 
 
(1) Identification of the individual(s) responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and 

repairing emission control devices; 
 
(2) A description of the items or conditions that will be inspected and the inspection 

schedule for said items or conditions; and 
 
(3) Identification and quantification of the replacement parts that will be maintained 

in inventory for quick replacement. 
 
If, due to circumstances beyond the Registrant's control, the PMPs cannot be prepared 
and maintained within the above time frame, the Registrant may extend the date an 
additional ninety (90) days provided the Registrant notifies: 
 
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
 

(b) A copy of the PMPs shall be submitted to IDEM, OAQ upon request and within a 
reasonable time, and shall be subject to review and approval by IDEM, OAQ.  IDEM, 
OAQ may require the Registrant to revise its PMPs whenever lack of proper maintenance 
causes or is the primary contributor to an exceedance of any limitation on emissions. 

 
(c)  To the extent the Registrant is required by 40 CFR Part 60 or 40 CFR Part 63 to have an 

Operation Maintenance, and Monitoring (OMM) Plan for a unit, such OMM Plan is 
deemed to satisfy the PMP requirements of 326 IAC 1-6-3 for that unit. 
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SECTION C SOURCE OPERATION CONDITIONS 
 

Entire Source 
 
Emission Limitations and Standards  [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)] 
 
C.1 Opacity  [326 IAC 5-1] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 5-1-2 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 5-1-3 (Temporary 
Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this 
registration: 
 
 (a) Opacity shall not exceed an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1) six (6) minute 

averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4. 
 

 (b) Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen 
(15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, 
Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute non-overlapping integrated averages for a 
continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period. 

 
C.2 Fugitive Dust Emissions  [326 IAC 6-4] 

The Registrant shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of 
the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would 
violate 326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions). 

 
Corrective Actions and Response Steps 
 
C.3 Response to Excursions or Exceedances [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)] 

Upon detecting an excursion where a response step is required by the D Section or an 
exceedance of a limitation in this registration: 
 
(a) The Registrant shall take reasonable response steps to restore operation of the 

emissions unit (including any control device and associated capture system) to its normal 
or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air 
pollution control practices for minimizing excess emissions. 

 
(b)  The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or 

malfunction. The response may include, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
(1) initial inspection and evaluation; 
 
(2) recording that operations returned or are returning to normal without operator 

action (such as through response by a computerized distribution control system); 
or 

 
(3) any necessary follow-up actions to return operation to normal or usual manner of 

operation. 
 
(c) A determination of whether the Registrant has used acceptable procedures in response 

to an excursion or exceedance will be based on information available, which may include, 
but is not limited to, the following: 
 
(1) monitoring results; 
 
(2) review of operation and maintenance procedures and records; and/or 
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(3) inspection of the control device, associated capture system, and the process. 
 
(d) Failure to take reasonable response steps shall be considered a deviation from the 

registration. 
 
(e) The Registrant shall record the reasonable response steps taken. 

 
Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)] 
 
C.4 General Record Keeping Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)] 

(a) Records of all required monitoring data, reports and support information required by this 
registration shall be retained for a period of at least five (5) years from the date of 
monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application.  These records shall be 
physically present or electronically accessible at the source location for a minimum of 
three (3) years.  The records may be stored elsewhere for the remaining two (2) years as 
long as they are available upon request.  If the Commissioner makes a request for 
records to the Registrant, the Registrant shall furnish the records to the Commissioner 
within a reasonable time. 

 
(b) Unless otherwise specified in this registration, for all record keeping requirements not 

already legally required, the Registrant shall be allowed up to ninety (90) days from the 
date of registration issuance or the date of initial start-up, whichever is later, to begin 
such record keeping. 
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SECTION D.1 EMISSION UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS 
 

 
Facility Description [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(2)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(2)]: 
 
(a) Air Melt Atomization Towers furnaces, each equipped with a product cyclone that is considered 

integral to the process, and with two (2) fume hoods, located over the furnaces in the 
atomization towers, constructed in 2006, controlled by baghouse DC2-1, as follows: 

 
Construction year Maximum Capacity 

(pounds/hour) 
Baghouse ID 

1990 800 DC1 
2007 800 DC3 

 
(b)  One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for modification, 

with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC4. 
 
(c)  One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for 

modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by 
Baghouse DC5. 

 
(d) One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for modification, 

with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by Baghouse DC7. 
 
(e) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a maximum 

process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume hood/Baghouse DC9. 
 
(f) One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, using 

a maximum usage of 20 pounds per hour and a maximum throughput rate of 24 pounds of 
parts per hour, controlled by Baghouse.DC8. This booth is located in the Research and 
Development Laboratory and is used only for experimental study and testing for welding 
torches. 

 
(g) One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient room 

dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building. 
 
(h) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum 

throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to 
Baghouse DC5. 
 

(The information describing the process contained in this facility description box is descriptive 
information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.) 

 
Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(1)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(1)] 
 
D.1.1 Particulate  [326 IAC 6-3-2]  

(a) Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing 
Processes), the allowable particulate emission rate from the processes listed in the table 
below shall not exceed the following: 

 



Kennametal Stellite LP Administrative Amendment No. 039-47548-00078 Page 9 of 14 
Goshen, Indiana Amended by:  Sarah Germann Registration No. 039-14366-00078 
Permit Reviewer:  ERG/RB 
 

 
The pound per hour limitation was calculated with the following equation: 
 
Interpolation of the data for the process weight rate up to sixty thousand (60,000) pounds per 
hour shall be accomplished by use of the equation: 

 
E = 4.10 P 0.67  where E = rate of emission in pounds per hour and 

P = process weight rate in tons per hour 
 

 
(b)  Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2(e)(2), the allowable particulate emissions from the fume hood, 

the castable rework, and the Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, and the welding powder spray 
coating booth (Booth A) shall not exceed 0.551 lbs/hr each. 

 
D.1.2  Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 1-6-3] 

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and any associated control devices.   
Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Registrant's obligation with regard to the 
preventive maintenance plan required by this condition. 

 
Compliance Determination Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)] 
 
D.1.3 Cyclone Operations  

In order to assure compliance with Condition D.1.1(a), the product cyclones associated with both 
air melt atomization towers must be in operation when the towers are in operation, as they are 
considered integral part of the process. 
 

D.1.4 Baghouse Operations  
In order to assure compliance with Condition D.1.1(b), the baghouses shall be in operation and 
control emissions from the associated processes at all times when these processes are in 
operation. 
 

Compliance Monitoring Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)] 
 
D.1.5 Cyclone Inspection 

An inspection shall be performed each calendar quarter of all cyclones controlling the two (2) air 
melt atomization towers, when exhausting to the atmosphere.  A cyclone inspection shall be 
performed within three months of redirecting vents to the atmosphere and every three months 
thereafter.  Inspections are optional when venting to the indoors. 

 
D.1.6 Cyclone Failure Detection 
 In the event that cyclone failure has been observed: 
 

Failed units and the associated process will be shut down immmediately until the failed units have 
been repaired or replaced.  Failure to take response steps shall be considered a deviation from 
this permit 
 

Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)][326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)] 

Emission Unit Process Weight 
Rate (lbs/hr) Allowable PM Limit (lbs/hr) 

two (2) air melt atomization 
towers/DC1 and DC3 800, each 2.22, each 

cobalt classifying operation/DC4 975 2.53 
iron/nickel classifying operation/DC5 975 2.53 
Linishing Line 50 0.35 
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D.1.7 Record Keeping Requirements 

(a) To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.3, the Permittee shall maintain 
records of the inspections required under Condition D.1.5. 

 
(b) Section C - General Record Keeping Requirements contains the Registrant's obligations 

with regard to the records required by this condition. 
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SECTION E.1 NSPS 
 

 
Emission Unit Description: 
 
(a) One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with a heat input 

capacity of 1.47 MMBtu/hr and a power output of 223 hp, using no controls, and exhausting to 
Stk1. 

 
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

 
E.1.1 General Provisions Relating to New Source Performance Standards [326 IAC 12-1][40 CFR Part 

60, Subpart A] 
(a) Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.1, the Registrant shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 

60, Subpart A - General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 12-
1, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart IIII. 

 
(b) Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.4, the Registrant shall submit all required notifications and reports 

to: 
 
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

 
E.1.2 Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines NSPS [326 IAC 12][40 CFR Part 

60, Subpart IIII] 
The Registrant shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII (included 
as Attachment A to the registration), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 12, for the 
emission unit(s) listed above: 
 
(1) 40 CFR 60.4200(a)(2)(i), (a)(4), and (c) 
(2) 40 CFR 60.4205(b) 
(3) 40 CFR 60.4206 
(4) 40 CFR 60.4207(b) 
(5) 40 CFR 60.4208(a) 
(6) 40 CFR 60.4209(a) 
(7) 40 CFR 60.4211(a), (c), (f), and (g)(2) 
(8) 40 CFR 60.4214(b), and (d) 
(9) 40 CFR 60.4218 
(10) 40 CFR 60.4219 
(11) Table 5 to 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII 
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(12) Table 8 to 40 CFR 60, Subpart IIII 
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SECTION E.2 NESHAP 
 

 
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

 
E.2.1 General Provisions Relating to National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 

40 CFR Part 63 [326 IAC 20-1][40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A] 
(a) Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.1 the Registrant shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 

63, Subpart A - General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 20-
1, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart ZZZZ. 

 
(b) Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.10, the Registrant shall submit all required notifications and 

reports to: 
 

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

 
E.2.2 Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines NESHAP [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 

ZZZZ][326 IAC 20-82] 
The Registrant shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ 
(included as Attachment B to the registration), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 
20-82, for the emission unit(s) listed above: 
 
(1) 40 CFR 63.6580 
(2) 40 CFR 63.6585 
(3) 40 CFR 63.6590(a)(2)(iii) and (c)(1) 
(4) 40 CFR 63.6595(a)(7) 
(5) 40 CFR 63.6665 
(6) 40 CFR 63.6670 
(7) 40 CFR 63.6675 
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INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY 

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH 
 

REGISTRATION 
ANNUAL NOTIFICATION 

 
This form should be used to comply with the notification requirements under 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 
326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3). 
 

Company Name: Kennametal Stellite LP 

Address:  1201 Eisenhower Dr N 

City:   Goshen, Indiana 46526 

Phone Number: (574) 534-2585 

Registration No.: 039-14366-00078 
 

I hereby certify that Kennametal Stellite LP is:   still in operation. 
   no longer in operation. 
I hereby certify that Kennametal Stellite LP is:   in compliance with the requirements 

of Registration No. 039-14366-00078. 
   not in compliance with the requirements 

of Registration No. 039-14366-00078. 
 

Authorized Individual (typed):  

Title: 

Signature: 

Phone Number: 

Date: 

 
If there are any conditions or requirements for which the source is not in compliance, provide a narrative 
description of how the source did or will achieve compliance and the date compliance was, or will be 
achieved. 

Noncompliance: 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Indiana Department of Environmental Management 
Office of Air Quality 

 
Technical Support Document (TSD) for a Registration Revision 

 
Source Description and Location 

Source Name: Kennametal Stellite LP 
Source Location:  1201 Eisenhower Dr. N, Goshen, IN 46526 
County: Elkhart (Elkhart Township)  
SIC Code: 3369 (Nonferrous Foundries, Except Aluminum 

and Copper) 
Registration No.: R 039-14366-00078 
Registration Issuance Date: August 7, 2001 
Registration Revision No.: 039-47548-00078 
Permit Reviewer: Sarah Germann 
 
On February 20, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from Kennametal Stellite 
LP related to changes at an existing stationary metal powder manufacturing facility. 
 

Existing Approvals 

The source was issued Registration No. 039-14366-00078 on August 7, 2001.  The source has since 
received the following approvals: 
 

Permit Type Permit Number Issuance Date 
Registration Revision 039-15682-00078 February 3, 2003 
Registration NOC 039-23709-00078 October 24, 2006 
Registration NOC 039-25404-00078 October 30, 2007 
Registration NOC 039-29603-00078 December 29, 2010 
Registration NOC 039-31339-00078 February 8, 2012 
Registration AA 039-33899-00078 February 4, 2014 
Registration AA 039-35083-00078 January 9, 2015 
Registration AA 039-36424-00078 November 23, 2015 
Registration AA 039-39438-00078 January 30, 2018 
Registration AA 039-40090-00078 July 17, 2018 
Registration AA 039-46685-00078 August 9, 2023 

 
County Attainment Status 

The source is located in Elkhart County. 
 
Pursuant to amendments to Indiana Code IC 13-17-3-14, effective July 1, 2023, a federal regulation that 
classifies or amends a designation of attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable for any area in Indiana 
under the federal Clean Air Act is effective and enforceable in Indiana on the effective date of the federal 
regulation. 
 
Pollutant Designation 

SO2 Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 9, 2018, for the 2010 primary 1-hour SO2 
standard. Better than national secondary standards effective March 3, 1978. 

CO Unclassifiable or attainment effective November 15, 1990. 
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Pollutant Designation 

O3 Unclassifiable or attainment effective August 3, 2018, for the 2015 8-hour ozone standard. 
PM2.5 Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 15, 2015, for the 2012 annual PM2.5 standard. 

PM2.5 Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 13, 2009, for the 2006 24-hour PM2.5 
standard. 

PM10 Unclassifiable effective November 15, 1990. 
NO2 Unclassifiable or attainment effective January 29, 2012, for the 2010 NO2 standard. 
Pb Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 31, 2011, for the 2008 lead standard. 

 
(a) Ozone Standards 

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) and Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) are regulated under the Clean Air 
Act (CAA) for the purposes of attaining and maintaining the National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards (NAAQS) for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions are considered when 
evaluating the rule applicability relating to ozone.  Elkhart County has been designated as 
attainment or unclassifiable for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions were reviewed 
pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2. 

 
(b) PM2.5 

Elkhart County has been classified as attainment for PM2.5.  Therefore, direct PM2.5, SO2, and 
NOx emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2. 

 
(c) Other Criteria Pollutants 

Elkhart County has been classified as attainment or unclassifiable in Indiana for all the other 
criteria pollutants.  Therefore, these emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements for 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2. 

 
Fugitive Emissions 

The fugitive emissions of regulated air pollutants and hazardous air pollutants (HAP) are counted toward 
the determination of Registration (326 IAC 2-5.1-5) applicability and source status under Section 112 of 
the Clean Air Act (CAA). 
 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 

On June 23, 2014, in the case of Utility Air Regulatory Group v. EPA, cause no. 12-1146, (available at 
http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/13pdf/12-1146_4g18.pdf) the United States Supreme Court ruled 
that the U.S. EPA does not have the authority to treat greenhouse gases (GHGs) as an air pollutant for 
the purpose of determining operating permit applicability or PSD Major source status.  On July 24, 2014, 
the U.S. EPA issued a memorandum to the Regional Administrators outlining next steps in permitting 
decisions in light of the Supreme Court’s decision.  U.S. EPA’s guidance states that U.S. EPA will no 
longer require PSD or Title V permits for sources “previously classified as ‘Major’ based solely on 
greenhouse gas emissions.” 
 
The Indiana Environmental Rules Board adopted the GHG regulations required by U.S. EPA at 326 IAC 
2-2-1(zz), pursuant to Ind. Code § 13-14-9-8(h) (Section 8 rulemaking).  A rule, or part of a rule, adopted 
under Section 8 is automatically invalidated when the corresponding federal rule, or part of the rule, is 
invalidated.  Due to the United States Supreme Court Ruling, IDEM, OAQ cannot consider GHG 
emissions to determine operating permit applicability or PSD applicability to a source or modification. 
 

http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/13pdf/12-1146_4g18.pdf
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Source Status - Existing Source 

This table reflects the unrestricted potential emissions of the source prior to the proposed revision.  If the 
control equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after 
consideration of the integral control device. 
 

 Unrestricted Source-Wide Emissions Prior to Revision (tons/year) 

 PM1 PM101 PM2.51, 2 SO2 NOX VOC CO Single 
HAP3 

Total 
HAPs 

Total PTE of Entire 
Source Including 
Source-Wide 
Fugitives 

14.18 8.43 8.43 0.11 1.73 0.14 0.37 6.51 11.55 

Exemptions Levels < 5 < 5 < 5 < 10 < 10 < 10 < 25 < 10 < 25 

Registration Levels < 25 < 25 < 25 < 25 < 25 < 25 < 100 < 10 < 25 
1Under the Part 70 Permit program (40 CFR 70), PM10 and PM2.5, not particulate matter (PM), are each considered as a 
"regulated air pollutant.” 
2PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5. 
3Single highest source-wide HAP. 

 
These emissions are based on the TSD of Registration Administrative Amendment No. 039-46685-
00078, issued on August 9, 2023. 
 

Description of Proposed Revision 

The Office of Air Quality (OAQ) has reviewed an application, submitted by Kennametal Stellite LP on 
February 20, 2024, relating to the addition of six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, one (1) rod/wire 
casting process heating torch, one (1) natural gas furnace for sintering, and one (1) dust collector on the 
Linishing line exhausting to Baghouse DC5.   
 
The following is a list of the new and modified emission units and pollution control device(s): 
 
(a) Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas-fired burners, permitted in 2024 with a maximum 

capacity of 0.25 MMBTU/hr, each, using no controls. The burners are used to heat up the tundish 
and keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from solidifying on the surface of the tundish. 

 
(b) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas-fired heating torch, installed in 2011, and 

permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 0.325 MMBTU/hr, using no controls. This heating 
torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying to the surface of the 
ladle. 

 
(c) One (1) Secondary Metal Production natural gas fired furnace at the sintering station, installed in 

2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 MMBTU/hr, using no controls, and 
venting to DC-10. This unit heats the refractory of the caster to remove residual moisture prior to 
the addition of molten metal to the process. 

 
The following emission units were constructed and/or operated without a registration revision: 
 
(a) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum 

throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse 
DC5. 
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Enforcement Issues 

IDEM is aware that equipment has been constructed and operated prior to receipt of a registration.  IDEM 
is reviewing this matter and will take the appropriate action.  This proposed approval is intended to satisfy 
the requirements of the registration rules. 
 

Emission Calculations 

See Appendix A of this Technical Support Document for detailed emission calculations. 
 

Permit Level Determination – Registration Revision 

The following table is used to determine the appropriate revision level under 326 IAC 2-5.5-6.  This table 
reflects the PTE before controls of the proposed revision.  If the control equipment has been determined 
to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after consideration of the integral control 
device. 
 

 PTE Before Controls of the New Emission Units (ton/year) 

Process /  
Emission Unit PM PM10 PM2.51 SO2 NOX VOC CO Single 

HAP2 
Total 
HAPs 

Casting process 
heating torch negl. 0.01 0.01 negl. 0.14 0.01 0.12 negl. negl. 

Six (6) Thermal Jets 
(tower burners)  negl. 0.01 0.01 negl. 0.11 0.01 0.09 negl. negl. 

Sintering Station 
furnace 0.05 0.20 0.20 0.02 2.58 0.14 2.16 negl. negl. 

Linishing Line (Dust 
Collector DC12) 5.48 0.55 0.055 - - - - 1.96 3.96 

Total PTE Before 
Controls of the New 

Emission Units: 
5.53 0.76 0.76 0.02 2.82 0.16 2.37 1.96 

(Cobalt) 4.02 

1PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5. 
2Single highest HAP. 

 
Appendix A of this TSD reflects the detailed potential emissions of the proposed revision. 
 
This Registration is being revised through a Registration Revision pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(g), 
because the revision involves the construction or modification of emission units not described under 326 
IAC 2-1.1-3(e)(1) through 326 IAC 2-1.1-3(e)(31).  
 

PTE of the Entire Source After Issuance of the Registration Revision 

The table below summarizes the after issuance source-wide unrestricted potential to emit.  If the control 
equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after 
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

19.71 9.19 9.19 0.13 4.55 0.30 2.74 7.47 15.57 

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

 
(a) This proposed revision will not change the registration status of the source, because the source-

wide uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of PM, PM10, PM2.5, SO2, NOx, VOC, and CO will 
each still be within the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.5-1(b)(1) and the potential to emit of all other 
regulated air pollutants will each still be less than the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.5-1(b)(1).  
Therefore, the source will still be subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations). 

 
(b) This proposed revision will not change the registration status of the source, because the source-

wide uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of any single HAP will still be less than ten (10) tons 
per year and the uncontrolled/unlimited potential to emit of a combination of HAPs will still be less 
than twenty-five (25) tons per year.  Therefore, the source is subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 
2-5.5 (Registrations).  This source is an area source under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act 
(CAA). 

 
Federal Rule Applicability Determination 

Due to this proposed revision, federal rule applicability has been reviewed as follows: 
 
New Source Performance Standards (NSPS): 
 
(a) There are no New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) (326 IAC 12 and 40 CFR Part 60) 

included in the registration. 
 
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP): 
 
(a) There are no National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) (40 CFR 

Part 63, 326 IAC 14, and 326 IAC 20) included in the registration. 
 
Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM): 
 
Pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) is not included in the registration, 
because the unlimited potential to emit of the source is less than the Title V major source thresholds and 
the source is not required to obtain a Part 70 or Part 71 permit. 
 

State Rule Applicability - Entire Source 

Due to this proposed revision, state rule applicability has been reviewed as follows: 
 
326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations) 
Registration applicability is discussed under the PTE of the Entire Source After Issuance of the 
Registration Revision section of this document.  
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326 IAC 2-4.1 (Major Sources of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP)) 
The new and modified emission unit(s) will emit less than ten (10) tons per year for a single HAP and less 
than twenty-five (25) tons per year for a combination of HAPs.  Therefore, 326 IAC 2-4.1 does not apply. 
 
326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting) 
This source is not subject to 326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting), because it is not required to have an 
operating permit pursuant to 326 IAC 2-7 (Part 70), it is not located in Lake or Porter County, and its 
potential to emit lead is less than 5 tons per year.  Therefore, this rule does not apply. 
 
326 IAC 5-1 (Opacity Limitations) 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 5-1-2 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 5-1-3 (Temporary 
Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this registrant: 

 
(1) Opacity shall not exceed an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1) six (6) minute 

averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4. 
 
(2) Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen 

(15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, 
Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute nonoverlapping integrated averages for a 
continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period. 

 
326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations) 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations), the source shall not allow fugitive dust to 
escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the 
source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 6-4. 
 
326 IAC 6-5 (Fugitive Particulate Matter Emission Limitations) 
This source is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-5, because the source has potential fugitive 
particulate emissions of less than twenty-five (25) tons per year. 
 
326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County) 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-1(a), this source (located in Elkhart County) is not subject to the requirements 
of 326 IAC 6.5, because it is not located in one of the following counties: Clark, Dearborn, Dubois, 
Howard, Marion, St. Joseph, Vanderburgh, Vigo or Wayne. 
 
326 IAC 6.8 (Particulate Matter Limitations for Lake County) 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.8-1-1(a), this source (located in Elkhart County) is not subject to the requirements 
of 326 IAC 6.8, because it is not located in Lake County. 
 

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
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(14), the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action are 
not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3, since they each emit less than 0.551 pounds of particulate 
matter per hour. 
 
326 IAC 7-1.1 Sulfur Dioxide Emission Limitations 
These emission units are not subject to 326 IAC 326 IAC 7-1.1, because they have a potential to emit 
sulfur dioxide (SO2) of less than 25 tons per year or 10 pounds per hour. 
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326 IAC 8-1-6 (VOC Rules: General Reduction Requirements for New Facilities) 
Even though, the natural gas combustion units added with this permitting action were constructed after 
January 1, 1980, they are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-1-6, because the unlimited VOC 
potential emissions are less than twenty-five (25) tons per year. 
 
326 IAC 9-1 (Carbon Monoxide Emission Limits) 
The requirements of 326 IAC 9-1 do not apply to the natural gas combustion units added with this 
permitting action, because this source does not operate a catalyst regeneration petroleum cracking 
system or a petroleum fluid coker, grey iron cupola, blast furnace, basic oxygen steel furnace, or other 
ferrous metal smelting equipment. 
 
326 IAC 10-3 (Nitrogen Oxide Reduction Program for Specific Source Categories) 
The requirements of 326 IAC 10-3 do not apply to the natural gas combustion units added with this 
permitting action, since these unit are not a blast furnace gas-fired boiler, a Portland cement kiln, or a 
facility specifically listed under 326 IAC 10-3-1(a)(2). 
 
Linishing Line 
 
326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)  
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(a), the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2 are applicable to the Linishing Line, 
since it is a manufacturing process not exempted from this rule under 326 IAC 6-3-1(b) and is not subject 
to a particulate matter limitation that is as stringent as or more stringent than the particulate limitation 
established in this rule as specified in 326 IAC 6-3-1(c).   
 
Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2, the particulate matter (PM) from the linishing line shall not exceed 0.346 
pounds per hour when operating at a process weight rate of 0.025 tons per hour.  The pound per hour 
limitation was calculated with the following equation: 

 
Interpolation of the data for the process weight rate up to sixty thousand (60,000) pounds per 
hour shall be accomplished by use of the equation: 
 

E = 4.10 P 0.67  where  E = rate of emission in pounds per hour and 
 P = process weight rate in tons per hour 

 
The control equipment shall be in operation at all times the linishing line is in operation, in order to 
comply with this limit. 

 
Proposed Changes 

The following changes listed below are due to the proposed revision.  Deleted language appears as 
strikethrough text and new language appears as bold text: 
 
(1) The addition of six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower burners, used to heat the tundish and keep 

molten alloy from solidifying. 
 
(2) The addition of one (1) rod/wire casting process heating torch, used to keep the ladle in the 

casting process hot enough to prevent molten metal from solidifying. 
 
(3) The addition of a furnace at the sintering station, used to heat the refractory of the caster, to 

remove residual moisture prior to introducing molten metal in the process. 
 
(4)  The addition of dust collector DC12 at the linishing equipment line, rerouting discharge from 

within the building to existing baghouse DC5. 
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Additional Changes 
 
Upon further review, IDEM, OAQ has decided to make the following changes to the registration.  Deleted 
language appears as strikethrough text and new language appears as bold text: 
 
(1) Minor language and title updates in the B and D Sections. 
  
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

 
(b) Six (6) Air Melt Atomization Tower natural gas-fired burners, permitted in 2024 with 

a maximum capacity of 0.25 MMBTU/hr, each, using no controls. The burners are 
used to heat up the tundish and keep molten alloy poured into the tundish from 
solidifying on the surface of the tundish. 
 

(bc)  One (1) Cobalt classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for 
modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by 
Baghouse DC4. 

 
(cd)  One (1) Iron/Nickel classifying operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2018 for 

modification, with a maximum process rate of 975 pounds of metal per hour, controlled by 
Baghouse DC5. 

 
(de) One (1) castable rework operation, constructed in 1990, approved in 2014 for 

modification, with a maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled 
by Baghouse DC7. 
 

(ef) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting fume hood, approved for construction in 2010, with a 
maximum process rate of less than 100 pounds per hour, controlled by fume 
hood/Baghouse DC9. 

 
(g) One (1) Rod/Wire Casting process natural gas-fired heating torch, installed in 2011, 

and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 0.325 MMBTU/hr, using no 
controls. This heating torch keeps the ladle hot enough to prevent molten metal 
from solidifying to the surface of the ladle. 

 
 
(fh) One (1) welding powder coating spray booth, identified as Booth A, constructed in 2002, 

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

 
(gi) One (1) general ventilation baghouse, identified as DC-10, permitted in 2015, for ambient 

room dust collection and increased airflow, and exhausting within the building. 
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(hj) Two (2) general ventilation dust collectors, identified as DC-11 and DC2, permitted in 
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

 
(il) One (1) emergency diesel generator, identified as Gen1, permitted in 2023, with heat 

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
 

(m) One (1) Secondary Metal Production natural gas fired furnace at the sintering 
station, installed in 2011, and permitted in 2024, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 
MMBTU/hr, using no controls, and venting to DC-10. This unit heats the refractory 
of the caster to remove residual moisture prior to the addition of molten metal to 
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
(h) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 1990 and permitted in 2024, with a 

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

Unless otherwise stated, information used in this review was derived from the application and additional 
information submitted by the applicant.  An application for the purposes of this review was received on 
February 20, 2024.  
 
The construction and operation of this proposed revision shall be subject to the conditions of the attached 
Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078. The staff recommends to the Commissioner that the 
Registration Revision be approved. 
 

IDEM Contact 

(a) If you have any questions regarding this permit, please contact Sarah Germann, Indiana 
Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate 
Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 234-
6555 or (800) 451-6027, and ask for Sarah Germann or (317) 234-6555. 

 
(b) A copy of the findings is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/ 
 
(c)  For additional information about air permits and how the public and interested parties can 

participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on the Internet at: 
https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on the 
Internet at:  https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/. 

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
 
Question on the Technical Document.  Pages 3 and 4 in relation to the Linishing line dust collector.
 
As I read the text clipped below, it implies the facility was operating the linishing line dust collector
without a permit since it was installed in 1990, and as such may be subject to enforcement issues
(page 4).  To be clear, the facility was operating a dust collection system on this unit since it was
installed in 1990, but the collection was fully indoors, collecting to an indoor collection drum.  To my
understanding, this type of configuration does not need a permit (until now as they reroute it to the
DC5 baghouse).  If I am correct in my understanding of the draft text below, and that the indoors
configuration of the dust collection did not need a permit, can the text be revised to be clear on that
so that it is not subject to enforcement issues?   (unless I’m misunderstanding)
 

 
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
throughput of 50 Ib/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse
DC5.
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Enforcement Issues

IDEM is aware that equipment has been constructed and operated prior to receipt of a registration. IDEM
is reviewing this matter and will take the appropriate action. This proposed approval is intended to satisfy
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
Sent: Monday, April 1, 2024 1:36 PM
To: Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>; Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>
Subject: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
 
Dear Randy Porter and Matthew Graves: Attached please find the draft Registration Revision and supporting documents for review. As a courtesy, this draft is being provided to you for an opportunity to review and provide comments prior to the

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
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The main issue was that the linishing line unit (installed in 1990), itself, was not included in the
permit or in the calculations. It is my understanding that the emissions associated with
Baghouse DC12, which is being added to the permit, are from the linishing line. With a PTE for
PM of 5.48 ton/yr, the emissions from the linishing line are above the exemption level.
Switching control devices from a drum to a baghouse does not change the fact that the
linishing line was not in the permit even though it was already constructed and operating.
 

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
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 2:21 PM
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter
<randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
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
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 3:27:20 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
Apologies for back and forth…. But DC12 is not a new baghouse.  DC12 was / is a dust collection
hood/vacuum that collects the dust at the indoor linishing line.  The former / original (pre-permit)
configuration had DC12 exhausting into the collection drum (indoors).  The requested change is to
reroute the final discharge/exhaust point of DC12 from that indoors collection drum to the existing
Baghouse DC5.
 
Maybe a phone call would help me understand / and/or explain.  Maybe I’m missing something.
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 2:57 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
The main issue was that the linishing line unit (installed in 1990), itself, was not included in the permit or in the calculations. It is my understanding that the emissions associated with Baghouse DC12, which is being added to the permit,

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
TSD for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078

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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 8:31:34 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
Good morning.  I just wanted to add another detail that I just learned from Kennametal regarding
the Linisher as follows:
 
“the linisher was made in 1990 but was not at our plant until we put in the rod line. Which was like
2012 I believe from the other things we talked about.”
 
I’m available today to discuss this and my question/comment below at your convenience.
 
Thanks,
matt
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Graves, Matt 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 3:27 PM
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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:42:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Hi Matt,
 
We can add the detail that the linishing line was not in operation until 2012. The linishing line is
the emission source, and it was not included in the permit previously, even though it has been
constructed and operating. If there was an emission unit that was not in the permit but was
operating at the source, it needs to be added to the permit. This unit is not exempt because the
PM emissions are above 5ton/yr. The baghouse does not change whether the unit was
permitted before it was operating. All PTE is before control.
 
Thanks,
Sarah
 
 

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 8:31 AM
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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:46:56 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Understood.  Thank you for the additional clarification.  Could you revise the draft permit with the
2012 reference below for our review?  There’s a big difference between 1990 and 2012 as an
installation date.
 
Thanks again!!
 
Matt
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:43 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
Hi Matt, We can add the detail that the linishing line was not in operation until 2012. The linishing line is the emission source, and it was not included in the permit previously, even though it has been constructed and operating. If there

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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:56:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

I will change it to say, “constructed in 2012.” Other that, do you have any comments from
applicant review? Or may I more forwards with issuing the permit?
 
 

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:47 PM
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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:59:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Yes, sounds good!
 
 

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:59 PM
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

Let me double check with Kennametal and get back to you tomorrow.  Good ??
 
Matt
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:57 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
I will change it to say, “constructed in 2012. ” Other that, do you have any comments from applicant review? Or may I more forwards with issuing the permit? Indiana Department of Environmental Management Sarah Germann Environmental
 

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
Date: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 12:59:20 PM
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

Page 4 of 10

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
Date: Friday, April 5, 2024 2:04:58 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
My apologies for the delay in getting back to you.  We are still having internal discussions with
Kennametal and expect to be able to provide you an answer Monday which I believe was the
deadline to notify you if we had concerns/comments or edit requests.  We will definitely get back to
you by then if not sooner.
 
Thanks,
Matt
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:00 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
Yes, sounds good! Indiana Department of Environmental Management Sarah Germann Environmental Manager • (317) 234-6555 • srgerman@ idem. IN. gov Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment From: Graves, Matt <Matt. Graves1@ aecom. com> Sent: Wednesday,

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
mailto:laura.chevalier@aecom.com
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
Date: Friday, April 5, 2024 2:17:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Sounds good, thank you
 
 

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
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 2:05 PM
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
Cc: Johnson, Julie
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Friday, April 5, 2024 5:34:41 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
Kennametal and AECOM are in the process of reviewing the draft documents provided and would
like to request a 1 week extension to allow for a more thorough review between our teams.  We
understand that with this request, the time clock for Registration Revision permit No.: 039-47548-
00078 will be stopped pending our review and comment.
 
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
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mailto:julie.johnson@aecom.com
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
Date: Monday, April 8, 2024 9:17:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Thank you for the message. I will leave the clock stopped on Applicant Review until I hear from
you.
 
 

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
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 5:34 PM
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter
<randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Cc: Johnson, Julie <julie.johnson@aecom.com>
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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 2:19:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello,
 
I want to let you know that I will be out of the office for two weeks starting on Monday. I would
really like to get this permit issued this week. Could you please send any additional comments
by afternoon tomorrow?  I will send the permit to be issued on Friday.
 
 

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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 2:33:14 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
We certainly appreciate your interest in getting this resolved sooner than later.  However,
considering the questions that came up regarding the Linishing line and the baghouse, the site is
taking a closer look within their operations to see if there is anything else that may be similar in
nature needing to be included in the permit.  Unfortunately, their lead engineer is out this week and
can’t contribute to the evaluation.  He will be back next week and depending on what comes of that
review, we may be drafting another request for inclusion in this amendment.  The site wants to be as
thorough as possible to evaluate all qualifying processes and/or equipment.  Accordingly, we are
asking that the clock continue to be paused to allow for this review.  We will have our response
ready upon your return.
 
Thanks,
matt
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 2:20 PM
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
 
Hello, I want to let you know that I will be out of the office for two weeks starting on Monday. I would really like to get this permit issued this week. Could you please send any additional comments by afternoon tomorrow? I will send the permit

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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 3:16:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

All right, thanks
 
 

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 2:33 PM
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
Cc: Johnson, Julie; Hartley, Heath
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 4:55:03 PM
Attachments: image001.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Sarah,
 
The AECOM team has been working with the Kennametal team to review additional information
regarding the recently submitted amendment application for their Registration.  We understand that
you desire to move forward on the application, but Kennametal and AECOM will not complete our
collective review by tomorrow as requested.  We instead ask that IDEM continue to pause
processing on the application.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me.
 
Matt
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 

From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 3:17 PM
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
 
All right, thanks Indiana Department of Environmental Management Sarah Germann Environmental Manager • (317) 234-6555 • srgerman@ idem. IN. gov Protecting Hoosiers and Our Environment From: Graves, Matt <Matt. Graves1@ aecom. com>

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
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 2:20:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Matt,
 
Has there been any progress on the discussion about Kennametal’s permit? I have made the
changes to the emission unit description for the linishing line requested from applicant review
on April 3rd. Since then, I have not received further comments.
 
The Registration Revision has been on applicant review since April 1st. Ordinarily for a permit
of this level there is a one-week applicant review timeframe. If there are no additional
comments, I would like to move forward with this Revision. As a reminder, there is not a limit
on the number of Administrative Amendments or Revisions a source can apply for within a
year. Additional units may be added to the source via another application if necessary.
 
Thank you,
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
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 4:55 PM
To: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter
<randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Cc: Johnson, Julie <julie.johnson@aecom.com>; Hartley, Heath <HHartley@idem.IN.gov>
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
Date: Thursday, May 23, 2024 11:15:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Matt,
 
I am emailing to follow up a voicemail I just sent about Kennametal. Do you have any updates
for this permit which is still on applicant review? Have you discussed moving forward with this
permit, and the option of submitting a new application for any additional emission units, with
the source?
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 2:20 PM
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
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:13:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Good Afternoon, Matt,
 
I am emailing to follow-up this afternoon’s voicemail. I tried contacting you last Thursday
about the Registration Revision for Kennametal, and I have not since heard an update. Have
you been able to speak with the source about this permit, and about the possibility of sending
another application with the new units they might be adding? As of today, this permit has been
on applicant review for two months, and registrations are typically only on applicant review for
a week. I would appreciate an update.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 11:16 AM
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
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From: Hartley, Heath
To: Graves, Matt; Randy Porter
Cc: Johnson, Julie; Germann, Sarah R (IDEM)
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:51:15 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png

Since we have not received any further comments, we will issue the Registration Revision
47548. If/when you have additional units or changes needed, please submit a new permit
application.
 
Let me know if you have any questions.
 
 

 Heath Hartley
Section Chief
Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch
 

Indiana Department of Environmental Management
 

(317) 232-8217 • hhartley@idem.IN.gov 

 
 
From: Germann, Sarah R (IDEM) <SRGerman@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:14 PM
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
mailto:HHartley@idem.IN.gov
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
To: Hartley, Heath; Randy Porter
Cc: Johnson, Julie; Germann, Sarah R (IDEM)
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal Stellite, LP
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 2:00:09 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image004.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Heath,
 
My apologies for my apparent miscommunication regarding our status on the permit /
registration amendment.  As previously discussed with Sarah, we are in the process of
reviewing additional information from Kennametal and are waiting on them for a few other
details before finalizing our comments/ response with the updated information.  We had asked
that the clock be held on pause until we have finished with that review.  We anticipate we
should have the review completed soon and will submit any updates to the original
amendment application.  We again ask that the process continue to be held on pause until the
information is complete.
 
I left you a voicemail with my contact number shown below.
 
Please let me know if you need any additional information.
 
Thanks,
Matt
 
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 
From: Hartley, Heath <HHartley@idem.IN.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:51 PM
To: Graves, Matt <Matt.Graves1@aecom.com>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
Cc: Johnson, Julie <julie.johnson@aecom.com>; Germann, Sarah R (IDEM)
<SRGerman@idem.IN.gov>
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 for Kennametal
Stellite, LP
 
Since we have not received any further comments, we will issue the Registration Revision 47548. If/when you have additional units or changes needed, please submit a new permit application. Let me know if you have any questions. Heath Hartley

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
Date: Friday, May 31, 2024 2:25:42 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image004.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Heath,
 
As a follow-up to my email and our conversation yesterday I wanted to let you know that
Kennametal is working on gathering the information we had requested of them, and I expect to
get a status update Monday and will let you know where we are and have a better idea of a
projected timetable.
 
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
Date: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 5:07:42 AM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Heath,
 
Update:  We received more information from Kennametal yesterday afternoon and will be
reviewing that with them later today.
 
Matthew P. Graves - CHMM

Senior Environmental Manager - EHS & Air, AECOM Technical Services Inc.
M (412) 302-3591
matt.graves1@aecom.com

 
From: Graves, Matt 
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2024 2:25 PM
To: Hartley, Heath <HHartley@idem.IN.gov>; Randy Porter <randy.porter@kennametal.com>
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
Date: Thursday, June 27, 2024 1:05:00 PM
Attachments: 47548calcs 6-27-24.xlsx

47548per 6-27-24.docx
47548tsd 6-27-24.docx
image002.png
image005.png

Hello Matt and Randy,
 
We have not received any comments or information about your applicant review of Kennametal's
Registration Revision since June 5th. Since the documents were sent on April 1st, this permit draft has
been on applicant review for almost 13 weeks. I completed the changes requested on April 3rd for the
linishing line. If the source has any additional units to add to the permit, they may add those by submitting
a new application. If there are any requests for the revision of emission factors used in the calculations,
those may also be changed or discussed within a new permit application. As a reminder, there is not a
limit on the number of permit revisions or amendments a source may apply for within a year. I have
attached the most recent permit draft, complete with the changes from applicant review to this email. This
permit will be sent to issuance tomorrow.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 5:07 AM
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



[bookmark: _Hlk162347273](k)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



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



(h)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



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



(a)	One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum throughput of 50 lb/hr, controlled by a dust collector identified as DC12, discharging to Baghouse DC5.



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

 
 



Page 1 of 10, TSD App. A 

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



Kennametal Stellite LP Administrative Amendment No. 039-47548-00078 Page 3 of 14 
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

 
(k) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a 

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
 
(h) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum 

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
  



Kennametal Stellite LP Administrative Amendment No. 039-47548-00078 Page 11 of 14 
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
 
(a) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a maximum 

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



Kennametal Stellite LP  Page 7 of 10 
Goshen, Indiana  TSD for Registration Revision No. 039-47548-00078 
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
(h) One (1) linishing equipment line, constructed in 2012 and permitted in 2024, with a 

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
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